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TVS MOTOR COMPANY LIMITED TVS =&

CIN; L35S921TN1992PLC022845
Registered Office and Corporate Office : “Chaitanya”, No.12, Khader Nawaz Khan Road, Nungambakkam,

Chennai - 600 006. Tel: 044-2833 2115
Email: contactus@Etvemolor.com | Website: www ivamotor.com

STATUTORY ADVERTISEMENT ISSUED IN COMPLIANCE OF PART-Il PARA 5 OF MASTER
CIRCULAR SEBIHO/CFD/POD-2/PICIR/2023/93 DATED JUNE 20, 2023, READ WITH ANNEXURE-
Xil-A, PART Il, PARA 1 OF MASTER CIRCULAR SEBIHO/DDHS/DDHS-POD-1/PICIR/2025/
0000000103 DATED JULY 11, 2025 PURSUANT TO GRANT OF RELAXATION BY SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (SEBI) VIDE THEIR LETTER NO. HO/49/1216(4)2026-CFD-RAC-
DCR1 DATED FEBRUARY 9, 2026 FROM THE APPLICABILITY OF THE RULE 13({2)(b) OF THE
SECURITIES CONTRACT (REGULATIONS) RULES, 195T7.

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN TVS MOTOR COMPANY LIMITED
AND ITS SHAREHOLDERS

This ks reference (o the Scheme of Arrangemeant between TVS Motor Company Limited (" Company”) and
its shareholders approved under sechons 230 1o 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“Scheme”), The Schemea was sanctioned by the Hon'ble Mational Company Law Tribunat,
Chennal ("NCLT") vide order dated July 31, 2025 (*NCLT Order”).
The Scheme is divided inte Il parts, which broadly provides as fellows: (i) Part | deals with definitions,
share capital and date of taking eflect and implementation of the Schema, (i) Parl Il deals with issue of
Prefarence Shares by way of bonus; and (K} Part [l deals with general terms and conditions that would be
applicable to tha Schemea.
The Company filed the NCLT Order in e-Form INC 28 on August 12, 2025.with the Registrar of
Companies, Chennaland the Scheme became effective from August 12, 2025, For more delailz, Scheme
is available on website ofthe Company al waww. tvsmetar. com,
Accaordingly, In order toimplement Part || of the Scheme, the Schame Implemantation Committes of the
Board of Directors of the Company on Seplember 01, 2025 haz allotted 190.03,48 456 Cumutative Mon-
Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares ("NCRPS™ | “Preference Shares”), as per the ratio
prascribed In the Scheme Le. 4 MCEPS of face value of INR 10 gach fully paid up lo each aquily
sharehoider of the Company holding every 1 equity share of INE 1 each fully paid up, whose name i3
racordad in the register of membears of the Company and'or the resards of the depositoryfies) as equity
sharehclder of the Company as on Record Date, e, August 25, 2025, by way of bonug issue. The NCRPS
will be carrying coupon of 6% perannum and were allotted on September 01, 2025 (M Allotment Date™},
Tha NCRPS will ba redesmad al par value of § 10 each on the date falling 12 months from the Allotment
Date, i.e September 01, 2025, The NCRPS are proposed o belisied al Mational Siock Exchange of india
Lirnited (“NSE™}and BSE Limited {"BSE™ togather with NSE raferred (o as “Stock Exchanges™).

Tha Company has made applications to Stock- Exchanges for listing and trading of NCRPS and has
received In-Principle approval for listing of MCEPS at MSE and BSE vide their letter no, NSEILIST/S)825
datad Movember 21, 2025, and letter na, DCS/AMALBW/IFA918/2025-26 dated Navember 20, 2025,
respactiveky. Further the Company has received exemption letter dated February &, 2026 from Securites
Exchange Board af india ("SEBI™) under Rule 19 (7 of Securities and Confracts (Regulalion) Rules 1957
I"SCRR") granling relaxation from provisions of Rule 15(2) (b ol SCRE.
DISCLOSURES IN _COMPLIANCE WITH. PART-Il_PARA § OF MASTER CIRCULAR
SEBIHO/CFDIPOD-2/PICIRI2023/93 DATED JUNE 20, 2023, READ WITH ANNEXURE-X|I-A, PARTII,
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OF RELAXATION BY SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE

BOARD
OF INDIA (SEBI) VIDE THEIR LETTER NO. HO/49/12/16{4)2026-CFD-RAC-DCR1 DATED FEBRUARY

2, EHEE_F_I_EGLﬂ THE ﬁF"F’]I_lﬂl?-EE_ILJT']‘_GF. THE RULE 15(2)b} OF THE SECURITIES CONTRACT
(REGULATIONS) RULES, 1957

a. Name ofthe Company: TVS Motor Company Limited

b. Address of Registerad Office and Corporate Office of Company: Chailanya, MNa. 12,
Khacer Mawaz Khan Boad, Mungambakkam, Chennal - 600006, Tamil Nadu, India.

c. Details of change of name andior object clause:
(i} Below are the delails of changes in name af the Campany :

5. No. Dato Evant/ Change Mama aftar Change Ramarks
1 June 10, 1982 | Incorporation as a private| Sundaram Auto Engineers | Cerdificate of
limited company undar (India} Private Limited Incomoration issued
the Companies Act, 1956 by ROC, Chennai on
June 19, 1992
2. Sepiember 4, | Conversion from private | Sundaram Auto Enginears | Word "Private - deleted
1995 lirmited 1o public imited | (India) Limited from tha nama
company
3 April 25, 2000 | Change of name TVE Suzuki Limited —
4. Movembear 7, | Change of nama VS Maolor Company Preseni name of the
2001 Lirribed Company

(i)

Balow are the details of changes in object clause of the Company :

Year

Changes in object clause

2000

sysiem engmesars,

held ore 247 Apal 2000)

A, The main objects to be pursued by the Company on s incorporation ara: -

To carry on the business of retail and wholesale dealérs in petral, diesel, gas and oil agents,
garage proprietors, repairers, cleaners and storers of taxicab, omni bus, auto-rickshaw, motorcar,
forry, and other public or privale conveyances and cmnl bus, mater car, derry, mator-cycla, sooater,
=copterate, moped or other vehicle repairers, garage builders, dealers in automotive components
and accessones of all kinds and automobile engineers.,

To carry on tha business of sleckricians, electrical enginesrs, elecirical coniractors and repairers
of ail electronic eguipment usad on all types of applications, and manufacturers of all kKinds of
electrical machinery and electrical apparatus for any purpose whatsoever

To camry on the business of founders of ferrous and non- ferrous metals, sheet-metal work, press
shop apparalus, welding engineers, refriperator and air conditioning and énvironmental control

(Inserted vide special resolulion passed at the exira-orginary general meeting of the Company

B. The objecis incedantal or ancillary io the abainment of the main ohjscls are:-

24" April 2000).

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, 1o provide for the walfare of the directors,
Trustess and Emplovees or Ex-Directors, Ex-Trustees or Ex-Emplovees of the Company and the
wives, widows and families or the dependanis or connections of such persons, by building or
contributing o tha bullding of housas, dwellings, by grants of money, pensions, gratuifies,
allowances, bonuses or other payments, or by creating and from me to time subscribing or
confribufing to provident and other associations, institutions, funds or trusts and by providing or
subscribing or contributing towards places of instruction and recreation or hospitais and
dispansanes, medical and other atlendanca and olher assistance as the Company shall think fit
and to subscribe or confribute or otherwise assist or fo guarantes money to charltable,
benevolent, refigious, scientific, national or allied institutions, bodies and objectswhich shall have
moral or other ciaims ta the suppor or aid by the Company eithar by reason af locality of operabion
of public and general utiity bul not for political purposes.

(The words "or offerwise " after the words “general uhility” be replaced with the words “but-not for
patitical purposes” vide special resolufion passed al the exlra-ordinary general meeling held on

Cithar Objacts al the Company not included in (Al and (B} ara:

leased be new and | or usad.

Regulation Act, 1945

traveller's chegques of inany othear form,

the Company held on 247 April 2000},

1. (1) To carry on and undértake tha businesses of trading, hire purchase and leasing company and
1o finance leasahire purchase operations of all kinds eiher singlyjointlyior on a syndication/
consortivm/participatived/lead basis including import leasing / hire purchase, cross border leasing
hire purchase, lease ! hire purchase funding, leasea / hire managemean!, pravide venture capital,
vandor plans, purchasing, selling, hiting or lelting on kire, all kinds of plant and machinery. and
eguipment that the company may think fit and ig assist in financing of all and every Kind and
description of hire purchase or defarred payment or similar ransactions and to subsidise, fingnce
of assist in subsidising or linancing the sale or maintenance of any goods, aricles or commaodities
of all and every kind and description upon any terms whatsoaver and to purchase or otherwise
deal in all forms of immovable and movable. property including land and buildings, ptant and
machinery, equipment | ship. aircrafl, automobiles including bwo wheelers and thrée wheelers,
ractors, Ullars, threshers, drvers, motor vehicles of all kinds, engines, generators. compuber
software and hardware, all iypes and kinds of appliances, domestic or otherwise, computers and
all consumer, commercial and mdusinal items and to lease or olherwise deal with thery in any
mannar whatsoever including resale thareol | regardlass of whalher the properly purchased and

{it] To underiake and carry on all operations and fransactions in regard to business of any kind in
Ihe same way as an individual capitalist may lawfully undertake and carry out and, in parficular, the
financing of hire purchase contracts relating to property or assets of any description. either foced or
moyable, such as houses, lands; vehicles and govemment bonds.

{ili} To carry on the businesses of finance, foreign exchangs, investmant company and an
investmeant trust company and tinvestinand [ or inance and [ or promaole and [ or eslablish in s
OWn name or s a holding company, or by enfenng into parnership with others, investment
companies, finance companies and brokerage houses, borrow and raise monies 10 underwrite,
sub-underamita, oinvestin, o acquire and hold, sell. buy or ctherwise deal in shares, debenturas,
debeniure stocks, bonds, units;, obligations and secunbes |ssued o guarantesd by Indian or
Foreign Governmants, States, Dominions, Sovereigns, Municipalites, or Public Authorities or
bodies and shares, stocks, debentures, debenture stocks, bonds, obligations and securities
issued and guarantead by any company. corporation, society, firmor parson whather incorparated
ar @stablished in lndia or elsewhere but mol Lo do the business of banking as delined in the Banking

{iv) Ta carmy on the business of bl discounting, bundi discounting, chague discounting and
discounting of any other tyvpe of pegoliable mstruments and other type of Instfruments, o
purchase, accepl, assign debts and to cary on the business of accepting, co-accepling of
negotiable instruments and related activities.

(v} To undertake and axecute or constitute any trust and to subscribe and act as and 1o underlake
and- carry. on the office or offices and duties of frustees, custodian trustees, execulors,
adminisirators, figuidaiors, receivers, treasurers, attorneys, nominees and agents and o manage
ihe funds of all kinds of trusts and to render periodic advice on investments, finance, taxation and
e invest these funds Trom tme o me in varous forms ncduding shares, term leans. debeniures
elc, andcarry on custodial services and as a custodian to'send on behalf of clients, the securities
for registration of fransfers, collect dividends and other returnsfimcomes and to camy onall ether
functions as are nomally carried on by custodians and lo safekeap the secunties elc.

{vi) To give advice on or to offer, give, lake, circolate andior otherwise ofganise, accept or
imptement, any lake-avers, mergers, demergers, amatgamation or acquisitions or schemes for
dversificabion, rehabilifation or restruciunng. of any busingss, concern, undertaking, company,
body corporate, partinership orothar firm or-any assocation of persons, whether incorporated or
nol, by acquisition of shares or asseis and labilites and whather a3 A Qoing concen of as & part of
the concem or ofherwise as may be required, having regard o business exigencies, and fo
promote or procure the ncorparation, formation or sefting up of any concern or underlaking
whather as Company, body corporate, partnesship or any other association of persons: for
engaging inany induatrial, commercial orbusiness actvities

{vii] To cary on the buzingss of money changers and o deal in {urei'g_n exchange in' cash,

ivhi} To underiake trading dealing in foreign exchange in all markets  both domestic and
inlernational andto conduct any other acfivities relsted tothese markets,

{Clausa 1 was amended vide special resolulion passad al the exira-ordinary genaral meebng of

manner 33 may seemaxpedient,

Company held o 24" Apnil 2000).

1401} Te carry on the business of aninvestment company and for that purpoze o investin, acqulre
any shares, stocks, debentures, debenture-siock, bonds, obligations or securites by origmal
subscription, participation in syndicates, iender, purchase, exchangs or othensise and o
subscribe for the same whather or not fully paid up, either conditionally or stherwisa, to guarantes
the subscription thereol and o exercise and anforcs afll dghts and powers conferred by or
incidenial to theownership thereof and to advance, deposit or lend money against securties and
properies to or with any company, hody carparate, firm, person or associatian orwithout securniiy
and an suchiarms as may be deterrmined from time to Hime.

{il] Te accept gifi.of propedies movable o immovatde and to deal with such properies In any

{i} To acl as technical advisors or consultants, Investment advisars, financial consultants,
managament consultants, markel surveyors and provide advice, sarvices and consublancy
various fields, such &s, geperal, administrative, commercial, financial, legal, economic, lBbour,
indusirial, public relations, scenthic. technical, direct and indirect tazation and other lewss,
slatistical, accountancy, quality contral, inventory control, dala processing, human behaviour,
partfoli management, and / or tooffer such servdces or lechnical know-how and ! or managemeant
sanvices o any company, body corporate, irm ar pergon or persons-and also gl merchant banking
activitias and organising collections and repayment of public deposits lo various corporate bodies,

(Clause 14 amehded vide spocial resolulion passed al the extra-ordinary general maeling of the

All other I:nb]é_ci"clam of thie Memaorandum of Association were renumbered vide special resolution
passad al the extra-ordinary general meeting of the Company hald on 247 April 2000

d. Capital structure - pre and post Scheme:

Pre-Scheme;

Particulars Amount (in?)
Authorised Share Capital
&0,00,00.000 Equity Shares of face value of ¥ sach 50.00,00,000
Total Authorised Share Capital 50,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and paid-up share capital
47,5087, 114 Equity Shares of face value of ¥1 each 47.50,87.114
Total 475087, 114
The post-scheme share capital of our Company is setforth below:
Post-Schemea:

Particulars Amount {in )
Authorised Share Capital
50,00, 00,000 Equity Shares offace value of £1 each £0,00,00.000
200,00, 00,000 Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeamalde Preference
Shares of face value of T 10 sach 2000, 00, 00,000
Total Authorised Share Capital 2050,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and paid-up share capital
47,80.87,114 Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 1 each 47.50,87,114
180,03 48,456 Cumulative Mon-Convertible Redesmable Preferencea
Shares of .10 each 1900,34,84 560
Total 1947 85,71.674

8. Shareholding pattern giving details of its promoter group shareholding, group companies =
preand post Schemeand debt structure - pre and post Scheme:

(i} Details of pre and post Scheme EQUITY shareholding pattern of the Company based on
sharaholding of the Company as on August 25 2025, i.a., Record Date under the Schame:

Sr. Description Pre-Schems Post-Scheme®
No. Number of | % | Number of o
equity equity
shares shares
iA}) Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group
1 |lndian |
a |Promater 23,87 82,786 50.26: 23 87 82,786 | 50.26 |
b |Promaler Group 30,000 0.01 30,0041 001
2 |Foraign _md ~ p -
Total shareholding of Promoter and Promotar
Group (A)={A)(1) + (A)2) 23,88,12,786| 50.27,23,88,12,786| 50.27
iB}|Public shareholding
1 |Institutions 18,58 24 160[ 41.22019.58,24 160 41.22
2 |Mon-lnstilutions 3,99,72,141| 8.41] 39972141 B.41
Total (B)=B(1) + B{2) 23,57,96,301| 496323 57,96,301| 49.63
(C){Shares held by custodians and against which
DRs have been Issued [ Non Promoter- Non
Public shareholder
ESOP Trust 4, 78,027 Cl-tl}g 4, FR.027 010
Total {C) 4,78,027| 0100  4,78.027| 0.10
Grand Total (A) + (B) + (C) 47.50,87,114 1ﬂu.nnﬁd?.5ﬂdﬂ?‘,11d 100.00

*There has boen no change i the Equily sharaholding of the Company pursuant 1o the Schame.

iily Details of pre and post Scheme PREFERENCE shareholding pattern of the Company basad on
shareholding of the Company as enAugust 25, 2025, 1 e.. Record Date underthe Scheme

the country in the last 29 years. He was
confarfed the Padma Bhus Aaward, 1he
third Highest civilian award in India, in
January 2020. He is the recipiant of Daming
Digtinguished. Service Award, granied o
individuals who have made outstanding
contributions " in the dissemination and
pramotion  (oversess award 2013), the
Ishikawa-Kano Award (2012) by he Asian
Metwork  of Quality, the apex body for
quality in Asia.

Under his leadership, his companies were
awarded the Deming Prize and the
Japanese Quality Medal in 2002; He was
conferrad with 'Sfd&r of Diplomatic Merit”
{Heung - In Medal) by the President of
Korea. He was presanted with an
"Dutstanding Institution Builder" Award at
the 13" Managing India Awards by AlMA
(Al India Management Associalion) for
displaylng exceplional wision and
feadership in buiding aninstitution, in 2023,
Conferred with lifetime achievement award
by CHBC = TW18's. India. Business
Leadership Awards {IBLA} in 2023 and in
2024 Emsl & Young recognized him with
the Life time Achievement award for his
decadas of entreprensuna! excellance In
rivolutionizing the two wheeler Industry in
India. He was honored with the Lifetime
Achiavemeant Award by the prestigious ET
Awards for Corporate Excellence. The
award honors his unparalleled
contributicns 1o Indian manufacturing,
lgadership and corporaie social
responsibHity.

Ha = Ihe Chairman  of TVES Holdings
Limited and Chairman Emertus and
KManaging Director of Sundaram-Claylon
Limited, He also serves onthe board of T W
Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Limited,
Tata Sons Private Ltd., (Tala Sons) the
holding company of the conglomerate Tata
Group.

He iz the Chalkrman of InKo Centre {The
Indo- Korean Cuoliural and  Information
Cenira) which Is a non-profil society set up
in 20068 with suppor from- TWVS  Motor
Company and Hyundai Motor India Limited
o promole & sustainable; meaningful
intarcultural dialogue between India and
South Korea.

He has held various important positions: in
the indian Industry, such as the President,
Confederalion of Indian Industry. and the
President, Society of Indian Automobile
Manufacturers,

He iz also a Direclor on the Cenlral Board of
Reserve Bank of India; and He i alsa the
vice chabrman of various Tata Trusts, India’s
most respected and largest philanthropic
foundation and the majorty shareholder of
the Tata group.

Trustes Private Limited;
{xliy Cheema Educational
Faundation: (xiil)Mamma
School Foupdation; {xIv)
Indian Foundation for Quatlity
Management: (xv} TVS
Cheama Scholarship
Foundation; {]h;'-'i] TATA Indian
Institute of Bkills

Forelgn Companies:

{1} The Norton Moloroycle Co.
Limited, UK: (i) TVS Motor
Singapore) Pie  Limited,

ingapore; (i) TVS  Digltal
Pie. Ltd.. Eingapnre:
{iv) Sundaram Holding USA
InG.. US4

ast O i

{i] Tata Coffes Limited;
(it} Oriental Hotels Limated;
i} TVS Elecironics Lirmited;
{i\r] The Indian Hotels
Company Limitad; (v} TVS
Motor Harita Employees
Walfare Foundation Prvate
Limited; {vi) Green Infra BTV
Limited:{wil} Emerald Hawven
Estates Limited; (viil) Chennai
Business Consulling Services
Private Limited; {ix) TVS
Capital Funds Private Limited;
{x) Sundram Mon-
Conventional Emnsrgy
Systams - Limited (xi) Lucas
TVS Limited(xii) HNTI
Limited{xiil) Sundaram
Textiles Private Limited
ixix) Sundram Fasteners
Limited (xx) ZF Commarcial
Vehicle Control Systems India
Limited {xxi) Cummins India
Lirnited {xxiiy Ala Khan Rural
Support- Programme | (India)
1:““” TVS. Investments

rivala Limited (xxiv)
southern Roadways Private
Limited  {xxv} Harita Venu
Private Limitad

Sr.| Description Pre-Scheme Post-Schemed
Mo, Number of | % | Number of Yo
aquity ety
shares shares
(A} Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group
1 |Indian
A |Promoter - - 95,51.31,144| 50.26
B |Promater Group - - 1.20,00G) 001
2 |Forsign - . - -
Total shareholding of Promoter and Promoter
Group (A)= (A)1) + (A)N2) - 95,52,51,144| 50.27

iBl|Public shareholding

Mr. Kunnath
Marayanan
Radhakrishnan

Designation:
Director & CEQ

Age: 63 years

Appointment Date:
Cictobar 23, 2018

DIN: 02559383

With ‘a career spanning decade in the
automobile industry, Radhakrishnan s
widely recognised for his customer-cantne
approach,  commilmant o quality,
technological acumen, eaxceptional
leadership skills and unigue. ability o
connectwith paople.

He was Instrumental in expanding the
operations of the Company Intermationally
incliding sefling up-a pant i Indonesia in
2007 and entering the three-swhooler
sagment in 2008,

He iz also an Executive Commities
Member of the Society of Indian Automcbile
Manufacturers {SIAM) and chairs the Two=
Wheeler CEQ Council at S1AM.

Currant Directorships

Indian Companies:

{il TV3 Credit Services
Limilad; (i) TVS Molor
Services Limited

Foreign Companies:

{1} TVS Lanka Private Limitad;
Sri Lanka; 'I:I::ll PT TVS Motor
Company Indonesia; EI-I} The
Martan Maotoreycle Co
Limited, UK, [iv) TVS Motor
Company (Europe) BV
PastDi i

{1} Sundaram Aulo
Components Limited (i) Meo
Sirategic Molors Limited.

1 |Institutions - - 78,3092 640( 41.21
2 |Mon-Institutions - - 16,0092 564| A.42
Total (B)= B({1) + B(2) - - 94,31,85204| 49,63
(ClShares held by custedians and against which
DRs have bean issued ! Non Promoter- Nan
Public sharcholder
ESOP Trust - . 1912108 0610
Total (C) - - 19.12,108( 0.10
Grand Total (A} + (B} + {C) - - (1,90,03,48 456 (100.00

# Priarfo August 258, 2025, i.e, Record Date the Company has nof issued any prefarence shares.
i} Details of debt structure of the Company as pre and post Scheme:

Particulars of Debt Securities

¥ crore)

Pre-Scheme (principal
amaunt oulstanding in

Post Scheme [principal
amount outstanding in
¥ crore)

Allotment Date; March
Tenure: 3 Yaars

Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs)
Face value: Rs, 1,00.000
Coupon rate: Hepo rate + 140 Bps

Number of NCDs: 12 800

125.00

14, 2023

125.00

Shares (NCRPS)
Face value: INR 10V- pg
Coupon rate; 6% p.a

Tenure: 12 months from

Allotment Date: Sepiember 1, 2025

Number of NCRPS: 190 03 48 456

Mon-Convertible Redeemable Preference =

rNGRFS

the Alloiment Date

1,500.35

Total 125.00

2.025.35

f. Mames of ten largest shareholders of the Company- number and percentage of shares held by
each ofthem, their interest, if any, as on August 25, 2025

Mr, Vijay Sankar

Designation:
Independent Director

Age: 53 years

Appointment Date:
March 20, 2024

DIN: DOOOTETS

Mr. Vijay Sankar holds Master's in Business
Administration” from the J L Kellogg
Graduate School of Management,
Morthwestem - University, and is also a
qualified Charered Accountant.

Vigay Sankar s the Charman of The
Sanmar Group, headguartered in Chennad,
India, with manufaciuring facifities in the
Mexico, Egypt, and several locations
across South India, The Group has asfrong
presence. in key industry segments -
Chemicals [(including Speciality
Chemicalz), Engineering Technologies
{Products and Steel Castings) and
shipping and has a turnovear of
approximately ST 1.6 billion

Well recognized for its high ethical
standards, the Sanmar Group has robust
corpocate  governance methods and a3
strong focus on corporate social
responshility (CSR)

Kr. Sankar is an Independent Director on
the Boards of several listed entities, Healso
serves a5 a Vice President of the Tamil
Madu Tennis Assoclation, Trustee of The
Childs Trust Hospital -and. the Voluntary
Health Servicas (VHS] and on the Board of
Sovernors - of the Medical Research
Foundaton {Sankara Nethralava) and CPR
Environment Education” Centre. Ho also
sprvesas a member of the Governing Body
af The Cancer Institute {WIA),  Adyar,
Chennai.

He is the Honorary Consul General of
Danmark in Channal and was honourad
with Denmark’s Knlght's Cross for his
remarkable consular sernce.

Gurrent Directorships

Indian Companies:
{i} Chemplast Sanmar
Limited; (i} Odental Hotels
Limited; (ik) Transport
Corporation of India Lid; {iv)
Kaveri Retreats and Rescris
Ltd.. (v} Sanmar Consolida-
tions Pwi.Lid,; (vi) SCL
Consultancy and Trading Pyl
Lid.; {vii) NS Family invest-
ments P Ltd.; {viii} Barbourne
Trading Pyl Litd.; lix) Stargate
Enterprises Pvt. Lid;; {x}ﬁs
Trading and Consullancy Pyl
Lid.; (=i} C Sankar Trading and
Consultancy Pyl Ltd; (xil) M
Sankar Trading and Consul-
tancy Pwl Ltd; (%} Southermn
India Chamber of Commenca
and Industry; (xiv) Young
FPresidents Organisation
g:hennai Chapter); (xv) SCL
esgarch . Privale Limited;
xvi) Chennai Willingdon
piporate Foundation: (vl
Chennai Heritage: (xviii)
Federation of indian Chamber
of Commerce and Industry

Foreign Companies:
Mil

Past Directorships

{i} Sanmar Haldings Limsted;
(i} The KCP Limifed; (5} NS
Family Consolidations Private
Limited, (iv} Indian Chemical
Council; {v) SHL Research
Pyt Lid.; Vi) Silkroute
Indchem Limited  (wil) “SHL
Securities Mlgha] Lirmited
Iviil}y W Sankar Propearlies and

5r. HName of the Sharaholder MNumber of | % of total|] Mumber of | % of total
No Equity equity | Preference | Preference
~ Shares holding |  Shares holding |
1, |TVS Holdings Limited 23,8782 785 2026 | 8551.31 144 o026
2. [ICIC1 Prudential Balancad Advantags
Fund 29853719 6.28 11,94 14 876 B.28
3, |Axis Mutaal Fund E2,89.545 1.32 2.51,59,780 132
4, (NP3 Trust 61,26, 796 1.29 245,07 184 1.29
5. |Canara Robeco Mutual Fund Da, 28247 1.14 2.07,92,9588 114
B, |Eurcpacific Growth Fund 48, 72,835 102 1,54 91,340 1.02
7. |Government of Singapare d43, 77,048 082 1,75,08,182 08
&, [Mew World Fund Inc 43,28.977 ER 1 1.73,15,908 0.8
9 158! Retirermant Mufual Fund 26 BY BST orr 1.47.50,628 0.7r
10, |Inveasco India Mutual Fund 35,10.178 0.74 14040712 0.74

For details of ten largest shareholders of the Company - number and percentage of shares, as on
Dacember 31, 2025, rafer 1o section tiled Capital Structure of the information meanoandum dated
February 13, 2026 available on website of the Company at www. tvsmoior.com

g. Mame and details of Promoters - educational qualifications, ex

perignce, address,

ST, Name of Promoter Address Experience | Educational
Mo, Qualifications
1. | TWS Holdings: Limited "Chastamya®, No.12, hot Mt
[Formerly known as Khadar Mawaz Khan Road, Applicable Applicable
Sundaram-Claylon Limited) Murgambakkam,
Chennal - 600006, Tamil Nadu.

h. Hame and detalls of Board of Directors (experience Including current / past position held in

other firms:
Mame and other Brief Profile Other
details of director . N Directorships
Mr. Sudarshan Venu | Mr. Sudarshan Venu, Chairman and| Current Directorships

Designation:
Chairman and
Manraging Direcior

Age: 37 years

Appointment Date:
February 1, 2013

DIN: 03601690

fdanaging Director, hokds a Graduate
Dagraa with Honors i the Jerome Fishar
Frogram in Management and Technology
from the Univarsity of Pannsylvania, USA,
He alzo-complotad a B SC. In Intemational
Technology Managemant from the Warwick
Manufaciuring Group attached to
Universtly of Warwick in LK. He was
awarded a B.3. in Mechanical Engineering
from tha School of Engineering and Applied
Sciencas and B.S. in Economics from the
Wharton Schiool,
Ha is also the Managing Director of TVES
Haldings Ltd, the Hodding Company, and
Chairman of TVS Credit Senvices Limlited,
the Mon-Banking Finance arm of the Group
Since laking lhe helm as Manaaing
Dirgctor, Sudarshan has actelerated %’US
Motor's growth and transformation. Over
tha last decade, TVS Motor's revenus has
tripded -and  there [ias. beén - significant
growth in the Company’s market share both
in India andd imtemationally, The Company
hasz alzo laken firs! place in Clustomer
Satisfaction for four years in a row, in the
ﬁrasiiginus J. 0. Power Awards, Sudarshan
as bean al the forelront of TVE Molor's
global expansion, playving a pivotal role in
the Comipany's growth in Africa, Asia, and
Lalam; TVS Motor now has a2 leading
position in many of these markets,
gspecially Africa. -Sudarshan - siso
spearheaded key acquisiions such as the
[conic British brand, Morten Motorcycles,
Guided by hiz vision to contintously shape
and evolva mability lo meel future needs,
ha has aleo champiomed alacinc vahickes
and sustainable practices, making TVS g
front-runper in Indig’s aleciric lwo-whaealar
mearket,

Indian Companies:

() TWS Holdings - Lirmitecd;
i) Coromandel Imemational
Limited; (if) TVS Credit
Sersces  Limited; (w} TWVS
Electric  Mobllily Limited;
v} TWS Housing  Finance
Private Limiled, {vi) Galaxy
Health Insurance Company
Limifed; (vi) 5, Venu Trustee
Private Limited: (viii) VEEYES
Charities Foundation,
fix) Cheema Educational
Foundation: (¥) Jupiter
Cultural and Herilage
Foundation; {xi) TVS Cheema
achelarship Foundation; (xii)
WS Trustes Privale Limited
Forgign Companies:

i1} The Noron Motoreycle Ca,
Limited, UK, [} TVS Motos
{(Singapore) Pte Limited,
Singapore; (nj TVS Dhgilal

Fte. Lid., Singapore;
tiv ) TV S Holdings {Singapare)
Pta. Lid

Past Directorships

() Swizs E-Mobilty Group
{Holding) AG; [ii) Swiss
E—éu'lnbilidy Group  {Schweiz)

Wir. Venu Srinivasan

Dasignation:
Chairman Emeritus
and Managing Direclon

Age: 73 yaars

Appointment Date:
January 27,2000

DIN: 051523

Mr. Venu Srinivasan, Chairman Emeritus
and Managing Director has mada major
contribution o the auiomotive industry and
nation - building at large for over four
decades and has facilitated the Company
fo emergs as Ihird [argest two-wheeler
manufacturer in Indig, His experisnce and
innovatwe excellence have helped the
Company  in broadenings s product
porfodio from time to ime and establishing
e Company’s presenca across the globe;

His dedication to the ransformation of rural
fndia by empowering wamen in-the roral
argas that can be seen through his passion
towards setting up the Srnivasan Services
Trust [S5T), which has louched the lives of
1.6 million paople in 2500 villages scrass

Current Directorships
indian Companies;

() TVS Haoldings  Limited,
() Sundaram-Clavion
Limitad: (i) TWS Eleciric
Mobilitly Limited; [iv)
sundaram Aulo Compo-
nents Limited; i'f;l TV3
Housing Financs Private
Limited; (vi} TATA Sons
Private: Limited; (vil) T.\.
Sundram Iyengar & Sons
Private Limiled;. (viil} LV
Trustiee Private Limited;
fixd 5. Wenu Trustes Private
lirnitad: {43 W& Trustes Private

Holdi Private Limited iixa
YFPO th Asia Chapler (x
Sanmar Shipping Limited
Mr. Shailesh Mr. Shailesh Haribhakii is a globslly |(Current Directorships
Haribhakti recognized thought leader, seral innovaior, |Indian Companies:
and sustainability evangelist, A pioneer in |{i) Bajaj Eleciricals  Lid;
Designation: Envirpnmental, Social, and Governance |fii) Adani Power Litd;
Ton {ESG) prinGiples, he has dedicated his lile [{i11) Protean E-Gov
Independent Director | 1, addressing wo of humanity's greatest Ter:hnnlngies Lid; (iv) Swiggy
challenges: inequality and climate change, L, (v) Aakash Educational
Age: B4 years His visiorary leadership spans five |Services Limited; (vi] Genarali
decades, during which he has transformed EEHFE‘IFMH Life LF?EU_FFHE’E
5 indugtries, redefined governance, and |~ LD Mpany miled.
Appointment Date: | o omnion axpnnmﬁalgtﬁhnﬂlngias to [ivii] General| Central
April 1, 2024 foster sustalnable development. Insurance Company Limited.
He founded and grew his- own firm :'.:.:é'..jgffirmgg” FTEH}GE:J-Q
DIN: DOO0T347 achieving an extraordinary 2000 A

expansion, His tenure as Chalrman of
global accounting networks such 'as BDO,
Baker Tilly, and Moores Rowland
exemplified his leadership capabilities. in
2018, he pivated his focus to sustainability,
teaching himseli Physics, Ghemistry, and
Biology 1o better understand the principles
of exporential lechnologies and
envirchmental stewardzhip,

He serves 33 Chairman of Shallesh
Haribhakti & Associates, Vies Chakrman of
GOVEVA  Consulting Pyt Ltd., Non-
Executive Chaiman of dakash Educational
Services Ltd., Bharat Clean Rivers
Foundation and holds leadership positions
across. industries,  including  education,
lechrology, clean energy. and financial
sanyces,

He iz renowned for his groundbreaking
contributions to EEG and  sustainability,
including introducing Integrated Reporfing
and pionearing pathways to achieve "Net
Zern." His leadership in CSR, governance;
and sustainability commitiees has earned
him prestigious  actolades  such as the
Vivekananda Sustainabiity Award (2022,
the:Global Competent Boands Designation;
and-an honorary Docior of Letbers from FTh

Univarsity.

Alternative Asset Manage-
mant Limited; (%)} Planat
Peopie & Profit Cansulting Pvt
Lid; (=i} GovEVA Private
Limitad; {xiy 1BS Fmlach [ndia
Fvt Litd; (=i}  Brockprop
Management Services Pwil
Lid; [xiv) -Cnergyis. Infotech
India Pwvt Ltd (av) YCWI
Green Solutions, Pyl Lid;
{xvi) Stalr Dagital Pyt Lid: (ol
Mirae Assel Investment
Managers (India) Private
Limited [xvii) Bharat Clean
Rivers Foundation

Foreign Companies:
Gaja Advisors Lid, Mauritius

PastDirectorships

};} Rapidug  Technologies
rivate Limilad: (i)} Adani Total
Gas Lid, (il Gaja Trustes
Company  Private Limiled;
{iv) Beonelt Coleman and
Comparny  Limited (v} L&T
Finance Limited (vi) Tomeni
Pharmaceulicals Lid {vi) Blus
Star Limited (Vi) Epigensres
Biotech Private Limited
{ix) Dscowr Joumneys FPrivate
Limited (x} Roevol Ventures
Private Limited {xi) Relianca
Enterprises and - Ventures
Private Limited {xii] Hubiown
Limited {xiii} Dhanlaxmi Bank
Limilad (v Invesco Assel
Management Slnrﬂa] Private
Limited (xv) Hexaware
Te:hnuln!:!'ras: Limited
{evi] Future Lifestyle Fashions
Limited [xwil) Herculas Invast
ments Limiled (xwviiil Capital
First Limited {xix) Ambuja
Cements Limited (xx) Elevar
Cigital Infrastriciure  Privale
Limited {xxi) Raymond
Limnited  {axil)  Gol fshorg
Limitad [x=xiii) JK Papar
Limited (xxiv) Indian
Peatrochemicals Corporation
Limited {xxv} Adilva Birla
Chamicals  {India) Limited
wxvil ACE Limited  {xxvil)
vares! Kanto Cylinder
Limited [xxviil} Mahindra
Lifespace Developars Limitad
{xxix) MorarjeaTextiles
Limitaed (xxx) Fulure
Enterprises Limited [xxxi)
Metropolis Healthcare Limited
(xxel} Mavanvista  bechnolo
fes - private: limited  {xxxii)
WTIPL Indusiries Privala
Limited (xxxiv) Vigintillion
Wind Turbine Installalors
Private Limited (xov) Karam
Chand Thapar & Bros {Coal
Sales) Lid (xxxwi) Fuoture

Limited; (=) Venu Srinivasan

Continued on next page...
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Value Retail Limited (ooil) 4, The Preference Shares will be a listed security and while giving near-cash {iraded, encashable) (T im Crore)
Future Capital Financial Instrument in the hands of sharghaldars, give increased lexibllity to the Company in managing its STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS Year ended | Year ended| Year ended
Senvices Limited  (xxxviii) liquidity until redemption. 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Haribhakti Mol india Private - pra % L X
Limited,. feckli)  Overseas 5. Inwew of ;tlhadz_lfiu-l_'gsgldfactms,_tdm l‘ilhci.m;:nélrr:g.-I h»as.r ?hun-:ﬂudndht:h?l it E-E!: nptriﬂnmhhy Eltlhze:ts s;rplu; Income
Infrastructure Alllance {india reserves by distributing a conzgiderable portion of the same to its equity sharehaolders, In order :
Private Limited {xxxx) {mmﬁ maintain high level of corporale governance and Yansparency, the Company had proposed HEWE'"_"E' MR dperalions Biealde |[RNATRAT |2Ea/ROe
Mahindra Trusteeship issuance of Preference Shares by way of bonus to its equity shareholders under Sections 230 to Other income 58.01 14853 100.57
'ISHI'"«"J'EE'E Limitad {XLI) Tl':E' 232 of the Act which will be subect to necassary statutory, regulatory and corporate approvals. Total income 36,309.33 31,924.90 | 26,478.66
Ll?rﬁlﬂ?%[gul-;—ml_ﬁi& D;Erlﬁgﬁjﬁ The Scheme is in the intarest of the sharshaolders of the Company and it is not detrimental to the Expanses
Fund Limited (X111} Financial interast of other stakehaoldars. Cost of materials consumed * 25949.08 | 2363353 | 19,990.59
Planning Corporation  India k. Audited Financials for the previous three financial years and audit qualifications: Changes In Inventories of finished goods, work-in-process
:‘i"'&"ﬁéﬁe L&'g&_ﬂ;f‘ ;dfr:"sg':g The standalone and consolidated audited financial statements along with noles 1o accounts for the and Stock-in-Trade ~188.43 -204.56 5.21
Private  Limited (XU M last 3 financial years ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are available on the Employee benefit expenses 1.670.26 | 158587 | 134508
Financial Asselt website of the Company at hitps://www tvsmotor.comd, Below is the summary of audited financial Finance cosiz 135.66 181.63 14064
Reconstruction Company slatemants of tha Company for the last 3 fimancial years ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024'and Depreciation and amorfisation expenss Ta4 B0 700,35 631.29
Siied | GREVL), MEnuoeh MBI A et Other expenses 406637 | 323742 | 236251
{KL‘JIﬁ DAL £ Thie LT LiH (i} Summary of audited financial statements of the Company on standalone basis! Total expenses 32.680.54 |29144.24 | 2447529
E:Jiugm LIEmlnqd [:{Pl:_i i!‘lj (¥ In Crore) Profit before exceptional items and tax 3.628.79 2,780.66 2,003.37
uadrum  Solutions  Private BALANCE SHEET A= at Az at As at Exceptional items - income | {expense) - - -
!Lr'.;’}gﬁt‘i fcla) fintatal 31.03.2025 | 31.03,2024 | 31.03.2023 ot i s i (| M sl e
Private Limited (L) Landmarks ASSETS Income tax expense
FII'II-H-I'IE-I-EI Aﬂ'ﬂ'lﬁﬂry E}EMEEE Hﬂﬂflitll'l'ﬂﬂt H.EE-Et!i- Current lax BET E? ?ﬂz 12} EGE _EE
Private Limited: (LI} First Propery, plant and equipment 3,B80.22 344218 326017 : . :
FPalicy Insurance Brokars Capital work in progress® 1238 B2 630,14 627.73 DIMFRTRC A% SAIDRered) o0 A% i
Frivate Limitad (LI} Cioud Profit for the year 2.710.54 2.083.00 1,491.03
Infosolutions Private Limited Diher intangible assels 46614 a29.67 33572 AT soribrebasabia ifsors ‘Tim A T
LI Acme Wind Power Financzal assats
enkasi} One Private Limitad . Investments 5,038.23 | €.82807 | 549195 ARSIaL Wi natDe eclassad (0 proil And loas
%:\Iz:u:l:urg?smg;ﬁr EI;JEt?ﬁﬁ?tﬂﬁ li, Other financial assets 28 00 {52 65 482 54 Hemaasymn}r&m of post arrmrqymant banefit obligations 6.29 -20.48 -26:39
(V) Ecoflest. Servives Limited Deferred Tax Assets [N.Eﬂ“ - x s Change in fair value of equity instruments 23.08 (.84 -13.65
{LWl) Future People Services Other non-current assets 229.61 161.67 108.73 Income tax retating to these ltems -4 49 502 8.37
Iélrr”lﬂhd [IE'}.-'I §] EJE_H tive Total non-current assets 14,881.02 | 11.844.42 | 10,307.84 ltems that will be reclassified 1o profit and loss
SEH TR G EL A Current assets Transactions relating o Derivativa instrumenis 10:23 524 4.0
Private Limited (LVII) ESG ; ;
Milr:l:ls F'li'uraIIE Lil:l'l'litﬂl'; (LX) in'.lantc!ﬂﬂ-s 1.725.78 1.370.80 1.296 36 Income tax relating to these items 257 1.72 4.0
Eqsait' HE."“.T:L““ l:E:E:rI‘ISLr:IIiim;: F*“a;_"“;;' 355'91:“' i g || s g Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 32.62 -10.74 -27.68
sl LU ouE T i oy : Total comprehensive income for the year 2,743.16 | 2,063.26 | 1463.35
Allianz Corporate  Services Il Cash and cash equivalents 293.56 48583 234 35 4 =
E"“ﬁ; ';".“‘Etg {'L-.“'?t;g'ﬂﬁ'l'; iil, Bank batances other than (i) above 264.77 4513 7.61 EEW'"EED'.’IE::;“ = i i i
wal nya {|iLLl] h =Ll {1F] BEMINgs [xar arg 4 H F
Supervisory Foundation v. Other financial asseis o7.55 77.25 62,83 * Includes Purchases of stock In trade
{ELnﬂltiJémMaxt-Gan Finance g:;qnt tax 5155&!5 : Met) T EIE i 4E; e “; (i) Summary of audited financial statements of the Company on consolidated basis;
Br cument assals & = ; i
: v in Crore
Mr.Balasubramanyam | Mr. B Sriram has held several key executive | Current Directorships Total current assets 5,081.87 4.217.82 3,684.55 T o oo i o )
Sriram positions in his career including Managing | indian Companies: Total Assets 19,962.89 | 16.062.24 | 13,992.39 31.03.2025 | 31 03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Dhractor & CED, IDS1 Bank Lid,; Mamaging {l} I Bank Limited |:_||;I ™S EQUITY AND LIABILITIES - -
Designation: Director, State Bank of India and Managing | cradit Services |imited: Equity ASSETS
Independent Director | Director, State Bank of Bikaner & Jaipur. | (i) Nippon Life India Assel Equity share capital 47 51 47 51 47 .51 Non-current assets
He has held various key assignments in the :iﬁﬂ F‘IIEl __E“'j'I'IEE ﬂén Li E' 1_'[1'1313 Other equity 9,089 14 7.683.53 6.000.34 Property, plant and equipment # 5.630.12 4.431.82 431510
T S e ot | (v) TVS. Supply Chain Total equity 9,936.65 | 7.731.04 | 6,047.85 Capital work in progress ° 146545 | 103295 | 74345
EEﬁﬁl‘:gns'[nlelrna:?nansgw-ﬂpn;?:lmﬁg Solutions Limited; Liabilities Other intangible assets § 2.014.33 1,459 04 1,.432.93
Appointment Date: | Payment and Settlement Systems and H;Lngna“?n';rg!ﬂmﬁgﬁr: ;:_"I‘E: :m"'“"'"ﬁ";ﬂ’“h"'h“" Financial assets
January 24, 2023 Small Scale Industry. B_ﬂwmg ent (NaBFID), inanics baaiies i, Investments & 732.07 960.00 775.33
He was a parttime member of thelgoeioneomooio, \. Barrawings 834.51 S86.81 | 1.211.54 ii, Other financial assets @ 11,367.23 | 1225007 | 10,514.35
DIN: 02933708 Insolvency & Bankruptey Board of India. He | : Il Lease liability — 192.63 313.07 313.24 Deferrad Tax Assats (Met) 49591 394 28 305.73
i-s alﬂ'ﬂ an Ext.e.;na' |n|~|EEt|T|.En: Cjnmm|“e& HII |I|| 'D'Ther N{In Ei.lrr&l'lt LhEhIHI:IBE EB.{H} 31.ED 3?13 - 3
B ; ; i Other non-current assals 24785 172.33 121.74
member of Brilish International Investment, | Past Directorships Provsiond 204: 90AT di9an Total non-corrent assets 21.952.66 | 20.700.45 | 18.208.63
LK, {i} Home Credit India Finance Deferred tax liabilities (Neat) 26502 187.05 188.20 o . . ks i -
Frivaete Limiled; Total non-current liabilities 1,577.00 | 1,724.40 1,835.99 st oS i
gl‘;_ [Z!trear_np_h.lg_TgrphnnIEgu&s Current liabilities Inventores 2416.58 224840 1.921.51
Hﬂ;r?wi,;;mﬁfé ":',L';‘:H;‘:,’Qﬁ: Financial liabilities Financial assots
Managers Private Limited; . Borrowdngs 800.43 B2G.53 1.033.04 i. Trade receivables 1,718.75 1,839.42 1.256.42
:El:cjlh Mul l|f ?Erﬂ I‘I'ILI;' di IE il. Leasa lability 108.39 13711 10554 i, Cash and cash eguivalents 4, 11500 Z2,305.80 1.851.18
ange o ndia- Limite ilk. Trade payables 6,153.66 511217 | 413056 iii, Bank balances gther than (i) above 271.24 §9.83 27.92
). S SHD, Smi iv. Other financial liabilities 310.92 126.95 12185 iv, Investments 515.31 163.19 191.92
{vi) Nationsl Bulk Handling Qther current liabdities 754,31 526.63 513.29 v. Other financial assets @ 15419.44 | 1361992 | 1046642
Eﬁ’;p”ggtl'“gu;’n'ﬁ[f il gr““s"”r: i ”3;'13 T 5"3-5; Current tax assets (Met) - 2389 4.56
Managemen! Services STk e 1) =4 st e Other current assets 152983 | 1,199.46 | 1,304.34
e Total current liahilities B,449.24 6,606.80 6,008.55
Private Limited (viii} SBI 3 4 Total current assets 25 984.25 21,520.01 17,024.28
: - Total Assets 47,836.91 | 4222046 | 3523291
and Payment Services Total equity and liabilities 13,962.89 | 16.062.24 | 13,992.39 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Limited (x) SBICAP Sacurities * Includes Intangible assets under devel m
Limited '(xi} SBI Foundation ol 2 il Equity
(i) JDBI Bank Limiied M T e e Equity shara capital 4751 47 51 47 51
5'"1 SBI Gﬂ“ﬂ"ﬂﬂ i'"su.ff'”ﬂg I5:H Emore) Other equity | 530476 | 746360 | 586234
{xiv) Unitech Limited {xv) SEI FEATEMENT O C B FELIS R HIORC || SUBCRAE S | VRAE Afvces Total equity 944227 | 751111 | 590085
: : 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 it i P
DFHI Limited (xvi) Protevista - 1 Liabilities
Bisinads. Moo Lirmiad A, CASH FLOW FROM DPERATING ACTIMITIES
Al -SRI Life Instramce Nt profit before tax 1,628.79 2 780 66 2,003.37 Non-current liabilities
{Eﬂ{ﬂ::]ﬂn? Limited Add:-Depredciation and amorisaficn fof the year | 744,80 700,35 63123 Financial labilities
Loss on sake | sorapping of efty, plant and i. i 1
Ms. Kalpana Unadkat | Ms Kaipana Unadkat is an experienced | Current Directorships: st PRINg of propeny. p | _ ] § Bnrrﬂwl_pg&“ 3.33?.55 12.?29 32 H.Eﬁaﬂf 08
independent Director with over a decade of | Indian Companies: Profit e G S el ; i A G i, Lease fiability 21.83 503 68 n6:3.51
boardroom experience and mare than 25| . — T o (G A SO N TSI RN S T ; o iii, Other non-current lisbilities 2800 31.50 37.14
Designation: years of cross-border legal and governance (i} Ens Lifesciences Limited: Unsealised exchange (gain} | loss * 0.85 3.07 .82 :
Indepandent Dirsctor | expertise. (i) Avenue Supermarts Dividend incomsa 40027 264 228 Frovisions . F22.57 270,18 231.26
Aﬂ“: 55 years Eﬂdl?ﬁ&ﬂi 'u.é:!‘{:l Elﬁdd'ﬁ"ﬂﬁl_ a SEI'III:EI:" p?irlngr E‘IIE_ =arvices Limited : Fair value of financial assels & fnancial liabdiias T8.27 2583 -f1.89 Total non-current liabilities 15,3-21.11]‘ 13,531.14 1“,1 04.36
Agﬁ.l_lmq's |n.:|i:; F'?{';I:tigﬂ I:DL”E:?'EDHF‘ Gz Foreign Companies: Interest expansa * 171.47 161.63 140,66 Current liabilities
2 : : {1} TWS Mator [Singapare) Profit on sale of investments -1.16 -145.39 22.01 Financial liabilities
Appointment Date: Ms Kalpana specialises in cross border
B s 202t | joit ventures and MAAS (intemational and | Fie-Ltd: B74.51 74547 677.53 |. Borrowings 13,683.08 | 1265730 | 1256215
' gf&"gﬂﬁ; and ‘:;EE| EQIHHEEI;E;'IEIIGE!EH;ﬁ Fl-asélniTﬁlthk:E:m . ﬂﬁﬂ:ﬂgﬂ:ﬂﬁ hefore working capltal changes 4,503,320 3.526.13 2680590 li. Leasa Habiliy 24442 945 40 185 84
pract chien LstmEns for; :
DIN: 02400816 doing business in India. She is sxperianced Hm:f;: ij”iregd_ i ”E‘Iﬁ i Dk sl e lii. Trade payables 7.561.26 | 663822 | 509667
in leading diversa teams in dynpamic R : : ' v, Cther financlal labilities 400.39 450,58 35560
Envlrunmmls 'i'l'h‘!IH a‘:hmlﬁg SUCOESE I 1HI!E-EI'HE-1.I1'.'I-1'I='I|LII'HIIE|1. {lll] TIII'IS Trade Recanahles R -329-85 -11.01 i 3 s
competitive markets. As a leading |Housing Finance Private Other financial assets 23176 24 68 2323 Other current llabilities 02962 806,49 856,63
wﬁl?ﬁq;gtlncﬁl r:'ﬂﬂrgﬂalsawaﬁm'm r-.i‘;slcgaip:ﬁw:m r"i:gﬁ Limited CHHar non-cutrent assals 1021 e B 7.99 Proviskong 21827 16664 11574
1 : YA
points in thalf growth joumeys including: Hher cisrant assels 1380 198.74 -248.24 Current tax Ilab_llztles (Met) 2880 : 34.58 1665
- Structuring and executing  sirategic ;:2'.'1'.3' F'ayanles 1.'5745:-?? 9;;3 "ﬂ:ﬁ Total current liabilities 23,173.54 21,078.21 18,218,770
acquisiions, joint vantures, and alliances WISHING i ‘ Total liabilities 35,494 64 34,709.35 | 29,323.06
* D.Ei|g|-||ng ITIEka"I. En“—!'l ElTHtEg.EE |r|t|:| mafuridizs UTdEbI.:' 20508 .14 -7
new geagraphies and sectors. Cihiar current ligbilities 22931 15.46 TEL64 # Incfudes invesiment properles
= Chverseaing. post-acquisition. infegration 593.72 70735 20543 * Includes Intangible assels undear development
o ensure Iﬁgiﬁmfrﬂﬂﬂl allgnmant and Cash generated from aparations 5,097.02 4.233.48 247547 A lncitdes non current assets
5"!-""“@!!‘ Fealsation. ) Direct taxes paid -831.35 -616.19 -1B2.61 % |nciudes Goodwill risolidati
" AEEING. . R RIS BT R, ATy Nat cash from opesating activites (A) 4, 266.67 361729 1,992.86 B L
restructuring 1o refocus. on high-growth B CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ' T ' i@ Includes Loans (recenable from financing actvity)
. grf;:ﬂrung arganic  growth  Initiatives Additions to property, plant and equipment S ICar. iRl maenaie L Deg e memod
through stratagic” partnerships, fincluding Capital work in progress) L {798 47 -1,088.81 -1015.58 I ncludes MNon controlling nterast
:Ewt}ﬂar;:‘zlﬂnﬁ;ﬂams- And  lorg-termn -Zale of property, plant-and squipment 18,76 333 18.74 (TIn Crore)
- Purchase of Invesiments $ -2.261.78 1,290 99 132215 || | STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS | Vearended | Vearended | Vear ended
FRecognised for her ability 0 brdge Sale of investmanis A3 66 B30.88 F 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 11.03.2023
overnance with strategic execution, MR R e ks :
: i 2 EpOsits 3 2 5 CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
%;'ﬁilpag?:fiﬁ?glﬁj.sﬂuﬂmn%ﬁ ’Lﬂﬂt tﬁe:{: F"m'"i o Tm‘m”‘“‘ls g e Ve Za Nt mﬁefnm b i 3.527.84| 2702.92 1.936.03
nrgams-a dat  resiignce, mantor o niErest race . o e ; ey 1 . A ’ 2 L
SENIoT EIEGHWE_E. she has dealivered e 10027 108 5 oL fd':. D'E-Ffv-EIICITJIJI'I-aﬂ-I.:I am;}rhsahu:lfnrlha vaar 1.045.56 oFh 42 BhE BE
STl SRRt Wnfitvns alid oo Nt Cash fromiused in) investing aetivibes (B) -3,870.82 -1,896.26 231180 ohat3nd esudomunt - | L ; _ .
Mz Kalpana is a well-recognised axpeart on c EAS: FLELW FEDM R aicthidhl 22 Profit on sale of property, plant and eguipmes .15 -3.38 285
Corporate Governance principles. She atso A OIS _ Unrealised exchange {gain) / loss * .88 6,07 052
al:lvlsrﬁjs an board ?ﬁecnvaness. particulary Term loans availed/{repaid) 210.99 -289.44 A7 .50 Fikidrn Ricois = 0EG 002
Ao IBSUES OF corporate governance, Short feem borrowings availed! (repsaid) - -840 00 210,00 I ; :
leadership, organisational climate  and Interssi paid {3842 24373 43710 Interast income =27 .16} -22.10 -10.54
decision-making. She has led several . o ; ' : Fairvalue of firancal assels & financial fabiles 78.27 25.93 -51.84
workshops and trained mara than 200 Dividend and dividend tax paid 475,09 -380.07 -£91.81 ; !
Sirschaie with & comprehensive approach Repaymant of lease liabilifles # -183 60 146 26 4,14 Interest axpense * 263.01 27408y 19561
I.I:ldlfaﬂtﬂr :ﬁmmeﬂl Bt cash inflow {‘EIU!HDW] from ‘ﬁl‘lElrlﬂ-lng Prﬂ-ﬂl -nﬁ Bale |.|‘1l |r'l'-|'EI$H'I‘rE|11“.5 s 14 A 0] al’.H3
She regularly acts for internaticnal aclivities (G) 587.12 -1,468.55 224.54 Operating profit before weeking capital changes 1338 37 1.210.07 a78.78
companias and is recoghised in O MET INCREASE | (DECREASE) IN CASH AND ) 4.866.21 291209 281479
igiﬂp‘r‘;‘d“‘“ guides as one of the leading CASH EQUIVALENTS [A+B+C) 4227 251,48 -64.40 Adjustments for
e f?{al. e wass I oechil of: the Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning Inventories -1686.148 -326.89 -3130
Cheveniig Scholarship - Englioh and EC of the year Trade Recsivables 11050 -590.00 -85.16
Commercial Law and Practice, She has Cash and Bank balances 485.83 23435 32875 Olbvar financial assels ! -1.15::.55E -4 409 659 5,685 .96
alsa been recognised and awarded: ash credit balance 455,83 23435 = X2B.TE il nEm-curant sssels a5 53 ARG.ER %538
« Traltblazer, Women Achiever Awards Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year| Oithar curment aasets 33064 104 86! -394 51
123 by FIGCIFLO; Gash and Bank balances 293,56 465,83 234 35 Trade Payabies 923 04} 1:B37.73 E17.35
N e S (RPN LA i Cash credil balance Z93 56 485 53 | 23435 Provislons 9067 B1.40 15.74
e A " Includas Gain on-pre closung Oihver finamcial liabilites {excluding currenl
- B Il“i"ﬂ""ﬂ L i
E-T'g ;;E!’rl mnm,ﬁg %—f,—ibge;::é %‘ﬂ‘ﬁ * Includes share based paymen! expenses maturitios of debt) 14063 25,00 -11.53
Stuart; § Includes share application money paid b currént Eabilties 12643} a5.85 61,07
* Tr::lEl 'CEII'FDFEI% thmagc?r Lawyar for # Inciuded Purchase of freasury shares by ESOP Trust and Other bank halances w2 16.64) 4706 24 BT A
Indra Award in 2078 by M&A Today, . . ' Cazh generated from operations 464057 29325 -3, 706.94
= The Femala Lawyer of the Year for 2017 LR SO avantiiiong ﬂnﬁnuiger:::lﬁrn;:h:ng?many ROEAIRTITREPIROd- S Direct taxes paid 11466 SE04Z 50787
by ACQ Global Law Awards, ' ' Mat cash from operating activities (A) 3,502.02 1.252.67 4,404,871
- The Women in Law awards by Lewyer (s B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Monthlyin2017,and [ STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS Nine months ended S
« The Women Super Achievar Award by 21.12.2025 Adcibons o propaery, plant and egquipmeni
World HRD congrass in 2017 : 2 ey {ineluding Capital work in progress) 2 4TB Elr:il =1,145.17 =1,340,77
- ncome Sale of property, plant and eguipment 184 34 63 24 64
. Business Model/ Businass Overview and Strategy: Revanue from operalions 34,462 69 it ot it g 526.3 Be0.04 ART AR
Our Company is engaged in the business of designing, manufacturing, marketing and sefling two- Eilbat lrinme A5 05 b e et 0,47 21841 &5
wheelers and three-wheelers in Indian and international markets. The Company has global presence il TnE o 14 447 64 Mttt s Tarrs tettaiis . o i
and offers a range of products and related servces in mobdily segmeant and aperales through an i FOARRA EF_'[E
imtegrated network of subsidiaries, associates and distribution parners, Expensos ) e ”"t' “j"""d e ” E:;I 2 ET’ 12&;
The Company is one of the largest manufacturers of two-wheelers in the workd by volume. It has a Costof wialerials conaumec 24.213.33 I;QE:S i ' '
prasence in multiple geographies and caters to domestic and export markets. Its cperations include Changes in inventonies of finished goods. work-in-process and Stock-in-Trage 305.26 s rechvet o ' ] >
research and development. manufacturing, distribition, and after-sales support for mobility products Employee benefit expenses 1804 38 Het Cash fromAused in) nvesting activities (B) -2 898 06| -1481.36 -1893.57
and solufinns, Finance costs 144 78 < CASH FLOAW FROM FINAMCIG ACTHITIES
Headquartered In Channai, our Company manufactures and sells two-whealers and three-wheelers reciation and amorisation expense 651.88 Neal Bormowings:
and has presence across all segmenis of the two-wheeler industry. More than 83 milllon customers g'er?er o 2 e 373399 Term koans availadi{repaid) 1.301.8 3.844.07 5.467.90
ride a TV & Motorvehiclein India and across nearly. 10 couniries around the world, 1 o i : ; aharl tarm borfowings vailed (repasd) 1.025.78 162,03 1119578
Wi have 2 nationwide distribution network of over 4,500 certified touch-goints, Including dealers and Total expenses. =~~~ 20,833.62 Ilerest paid 406 54 28367 112,08
Authorised Service Centres and continuousty seeks to increase its reach. The Company has a talent Profit before exceptional items and tax 3.594.02 Dviddend and dividend tax pasd 47500 36007 -201.89
pood nf_rnn:ra than 5000 parsonnel who work out of four state-of-the-art manufacturing facilities at Excaptional iterns - incoma | (expense) -41:3F Repaymant of lease Eabiiles # 20076 2400 34 22010
r-:;rsur in Tamil Madu, Mysore in Karmataka, Malagarh in Himachal Pradeszh, and Karawang in Profit before tax 1,552 65 Net cash inflow [outflow) from financing
MOONESIE. . Incoma Ha:i; E'IFHHSE actviliss !B} 1,1 hb.24 3,2-35.6'4 E,EDE‘E@
The Company has subsidiaries and associates including The Noron Motorgycle Co, Limited (United D' WET INCREASE/DECREASE) IN CASH
Curranl tax BBG.03
Kingdom), and TVE EBke Company AG [Switzerand), which 5 engaged In the personal e-moballiy Deferrad tax chargallcradit) 41.67 AND CASH (A+B+C) 1,758 20 504 81 405.51
segmant X EQUIVALENTS
I its four-decade-long joumney, the brand has won many accolades along the way, The Company is Firofit for the yea 4,625.05 Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning
the first lwo-wheaber manufacturer io be confarred with the prestigious Deming Prize for excellence in Other comprehensive income of the yaar
quality. The Company’s vanous products have led in their respective categones in the J.D. Power Items that witl not be reclassified o profit and loss Cash and Bank balancas 2.355.80 1,851.18 1445 68
:;'-‘!S ané APEAL F-Euwerf- fsﬂr JF‘-’FE r?arg“ Faor mﬁﬂ?mrhﬁﬁam' it wﬁ: ranked No. 1 in TedJ ?- Remeasurement of post employment benafit obligations L2 01 CGash credil batance 4 F355.60 4 1,851.19 .| 1.445.88
oweir G ustomer Sorvice Satisfaction Fuy. Zalzol rat wo-wineaded campany inlnkiE Lo Chan in fair value of equity instruments 16125 Cash and cash equivalients al he.end of the viar
re::agiwe the prestigicus TPM Advanced Special Award for all s factories cerified by the Japan i o I s h.'“ £ Cash and Bank halances 414500 2 %55 80 1,851 19
ncome fax relstiing o these items 1848
i ;:s:jllum ar:a.:': . items that will be reclassified to profit and loss Cash:credit balance - 4.415.00] =1 4135580 z} 1:851.18
. Rationale for the Scheme:
i i At i . * Inchedes & .|
1. The Company had built up substantial sunplus reserves, over the yvears from its refained profits. Transactions "EE_H’”"Q to Dervative instruments 246 f T TN IR mr_e
The surplus reserves are well above the Company's current and likely future business needs. Income tax relating to these items 0.62 Includes Loans given by a financial enterprisa (Net)
2. Further, upon taking into consideration the Company's capability to generate strong free cash llow Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 137.02 * Includes share based payment expenses
in the foreseeable future and the surplus resernves being more than what is needed to fund the Total comprehensive income for the year 2,762.07 % Includes share application money pakd-and Investmeant property
CGJ_'I'I:?EH'I':.I*E future growdh, the Company is of the view that these excess funds can be optimally Eamings per share # Included Purchase of tresury shares by ESOP Trust and Cther bank balanoes and Contribution from
; :I"’-EQ’; m*lm"'ﬁ:d Iléﬁhﬂl‘ﬂhﬂﬂiﬂ;‘;- _ I e " Basic & Diluted eamings per share 55.25 nan-controfiing Interest
- Aecordingly, the Company proposed inter alia, to distibute - such' funds ‘amongst its 2
shareholders by issuing fully paid up Preference Shares by way of bonus in terms of tha Scheme, Includes purchase: of stocl in trade Continued on next page...
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~-continued from previous page

Limited reviewed consolidated financial results of the Company for nine months period ended
December 31, 2025:

DriveX Mobility Private Limited was incorporated on 17 Apnil 2020 as a Private Limited Company
under the Companies Act 2013, at RoC - Cotmbalore, bearing GIN — Us3040TZ2020PTCO33680.

enterprises where the sk of insolvency Is greater. The Company's ability 1o procure guaity
supplies in a cost-effective and fimely manner or at all is subject to various factors, some of which

(FIn Crora) The Company is engaged in business of buyving, refurbishing and selling of pre-owned two wheelers ara not within its confirod.
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS MNine months ended and trading in automaobile spare parts, accessories and engine oils. The financial information derived Furlhermore, thers is a risk that the suppher’s manufacturing capacity does not meel, or exceads
31.12.2025 from last three years audited financial statements of the Company is given below: sales demand, thereby compromising business performance and without any near - term remedy
Income Particulars FY 2025 FY2024 | FY 2023 given the time and invesiments required for any change. While the Company manages its supply
Authorized share capital (2 Cr 1.60 1.B0 1.60 chain as part of its supplier management process, any significant hindrance related 10 its supply
gar:r:{nlu& Yo aperations 41,1]::3.;3 SR —————— bediacld 002 007 003 chain, shortages of essential raw materialz, utilities or manpower in the fuiure could affect the

t AL ; aid-up Equity (£ Cr) . ! Company's résulls of operations inan adverse manner.

Tatal Income 41 .'u'az-'IE‘ REEEI"I.I‘E‘E-E ELI-I'FIIL]E I:[ CT} EE-'E'E 4328 T4.24 Deteraration in demand of our F’Tl:‘dﬂ‘-ﬂﬁ and lack of atcess 6 sufficient finencial BITEI'IQEITIEIH":E Fosr
Expenses Revanue from Operations (€Cr) 50,97 33,09 574 company's supply chain could impair the timely avallability of companents 1o us. In addition, if one
Cost of matenals consumed * 24.981.37 Profit After Tax (2 Cr) (46.33) (30.98) (11.12) or mare of the other manufaciurers were to become insolvent, this would have an adverse impact
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-process and Stock-in-Trade 372.96 SRE e 3554018 | (15.314.00) | (7 544 86 on the supply chains and may further adversely affec! the Comnpany's resulls of operations. The
Empiaves berefit expenses 3740 52 {t) (42,540, 112.312.03) | (7.544.86) company ks also g-xpnsad tf:s_supply chain risks rﬁlallngt-u:-_ precious metals I!keRI'_u:udl_um. Paliadium
Firanis coots 1,664 00 Met Asset Value per Equity Ehire it 15,758.80 | 2139641 | 36.702.02 fhnd F'iahnum.l :En:h Fttre cn:nm prru;uue the Cnmp-anr:ﬁ ; pruﬁ;n:;. Snn:_: diEruptlnmrHT: supply of

1 e —— = = _ =hee——— & same could disrupl production of the company's vahicles. Whils the Company is inthe process
Dapreciaton and amortisation expense 858.10 T‘!‘E Emerald leimd_ tl‘mmartyr known as Emerald qu Realty Limited) was mc-uq:u::mted_ﬂn of implementing stra?eges to reducs its mmga,.-iﬂr costs, such reduction -mr:%i[:mﬂ.’, nulp;e fully
el FLhsip CIN - 45200 TNZOTOPLCO75953. The Campany Is snasged in businass of sl estate, The fisancis setitied,

= . B s e a0 In OusInass sl 85 . 8 financl 1. 4

:nhk:::;zn cird st s anidan 3;3:':; information derivad from last three years &leﬂﬂpj fmanmn:gsatgtemgntsu{ the Company is given balow: €. Risks relating to our dealers:

o i . B R x i Particulars EY 2025 FY2024 | FY 2023 Qur products are sold and serviced through a network of authonzed dealers and service centers
Exceptional flems - income / (expense) * -76.07 - across India and thraugh a network of distributors and local dealers in international markets. Any
Profit before tax 3,523.61 Authorised share capilal (2 Cr] L 265.00 285.00 under performance by or a deterioration in the fimancial condition of our deasers of distributors
Income tax axpenss Paid-up Equity (¥ Cr) 255,44 2495 44 25544 could materially and ;dwrserr ?rffecll our ElEld|E3 am:nge:-ulta DL operations adversely, iLdEalerﬁ 1:I:anr

i importers encoenter financial difficulties and our products and services cannol be sold ar can be
Cu;mnt P : V3 FREReries &S00 U3 l:t_ & (32.92) (14.52) LA4) sobd only in limited numbers, the sales of such deaters and importers may be adversely affected
Deferred tax charge/|(credit) @ -10.65 Ravenue from Oparations (TCr) 232.00 B1.20 22.80 Such reduction in salas may lead to a sharp decline In cash flows and potential losses for our
Profit for the year 2366.58 Profit After Tax (2.0r) (35.40) (312} | (31.00) dealers,
Other comprehensive income EPS (@) 11.39) 0.12) (1.33) Addilionally, if wa. cannot replace the affacted dealers or importers with other franchisaes, the
items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss : financial difficuities experienced by such dealers or importers could have an indirect effect on our
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations 1215 Met Asset Value per Equity Eharg ff_:' (excludes vehicle delivaries. Consaguently, we could he compealled to provide additional supporl for dealers
Change in fair value of equily instruments § 165 21 | Instruments in the nature of equity ike CCD.DCD) | 7821 833 | 951 | and importers or look for -altemnate dealers and importers, thereby impacting the business
Income tax relating to these tems -18.48 TVS Digital Limited was incorporated on 22 March 2010 as a Private Limited Company under the adversely

; ' | Companies Act 1856, al Rol — Chennai, bearing CIM - UFD10ITHNZDT0OPTCOTS02T and was |ater d. Forex Risks:

;EE'TI'IE thal will ba rIE':‘EEEH-lEIj tﬂ-ll:ll'ﬂm and loss § mada a puh‘"ﬂ. E'EII-I"IPEIH-!'I' with alleration to the main -EIIJ]EE‘!E in 2024 and the CIN as on dala is W hile Subslﬂﬂt!-ﬂlly all thia Cﬂmpanjfﬂ- revenues are denominated In INR. the Cﬁmﬂan? E:I:D'I]I'EE o
ransactions relating to Derfvative instruments TS UB2090TN2010PLCD75027. The Company is engaged in business of digital transformation, software o it Sarrrdbeabiad Sbabparsn o iCumy e nhividduetiondb i depbindnst
Income tax relating to these tems 0.84 designing, development, customization, implemantation, maintanance, tasting and banch marking. T L e T o 5 R N e E e RS

. ; ] AT ; Rl ; othar than INR. We obtain a portion of our raw materials, components and aguipment from
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 307 46 sofiware _and_busmass conautting, training, d-n_amgnmg. dwelnplng. digﬂailgallnn. process automation overseas suppliers and make payments for such goods in foreign currencies, The Company has
Total eomprehensive income for the year # 2,674.34 an!;l dealing i compider software and solubons. _ThFT" fnanaial information dedved from last three foreign subsidiaries across the world that sam income in local currencies. Advaerse changes in
Eamings por share years audited financial stataments afthe Eﬂmpanynsgnren below. currency exchange rate also impacts the net income of such:subsidiaries. The mismatch of
Basic & Diluted samings per share 4729 Particulars FY 2025 FY2024 | FY 2023 currencies, changes in exchange rates, parficularly amang INR, the U.S. dollar and the Eura,
: ; Authorised share capital (£ Cr) 305 305 .05 affect the Company on standalone and consolidated basis, Additionally, Tuciuations in foréign
Includes purchase of stock in trade P ——— 205 305 005 exchange rates affect demand for the Company’s products abroad, and consequently, the pricing
Mncludes Share of net profitiloss) fram associates using equity mathod Paid-up Equity (£ Cr) : ; : policies of the Company, While the Company follows a foreign currency hedaing policy, the risks
and profit before tax from discontinued operations | Resarves & Surplus (1Cr) 1.58 1.08 0.85 associated with movement In foreign currencies would not Be fully mitigated. Hedge instruments
% Includes Share of other comprabiensive income of an associate Revenue from Operatians (£Cr) 27.82 3.85 0.07 coulid also resuitin financiatoss tothe Company.
& Includes FOTR Prafit After Tax (T Cr) 0,50 027 0,03 g, Fisksrelating (o ourinternaiional Dusiness;
# Includes NCI portion EPS () 1.65 .06 5.02 .E.: deterlnrall:;ﬂn i I_H?h:rl.':ueull t:c;:;n-nmictpmdﬂ:;ns I_n:uu_il:_!khah-a a ma’_rwial ;dv&rsah!mp?hc; nnmih*:
- ompany sales and resu a ions, A decling i key economic metrics, such as
: ITﬂ;djs C'tu"?nt tﬂ;,ﬁm IEH smnllnuat:iupurauﬂns Mﬁwﬂﬂi—_&?ﬁa 13.58 180.74 rate, mtgrasi rales and Inﬂatlnn,mcm availability of rlngm:lng for vahicles at mmmhhvagraigs-
@includes tax from Discantinued aparations TVS Training & Services Limited was Incorporated on 22 March 2010 as a Private Limited tax policies and increase in freight rates and fuel prices could materially and adversely affect our
(T In Crora) Company under the Companies Act 1958, at RoC Chennai, bearing CIN sates, Further, a dacreasa in our potential customers’ dispasable incoma or their financial flexibitity
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS Year ended| Year ended| Year ended U74990TN2010PLCDT5028. The Company is engaged In business of providing, establishing, or an increase In the cost of financing will generally have a negative Impact on demand for our
31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023 malntain, run, develop and manage or take over and administer schools, colleges, or othar bodles or products. In case of depreciation in local currencies, import of our products shall become
Income institutions and imparting skill development training. The financial information derved from last three expensiva for pur intemational distributors. Upon the occurrence of the same, our international
Revenue from operations 4408901 | 3877882 | 3157398 years audited financial stataments of tha Company is glven below: distributors shall rely on the Company for reduction in prices, leading to a decline In our profitability.
Other income 69,56 105.62 138.00 Particulars FY 2025 FY2024 | FY 2023 in the global market, governments have been focussing on essential goods delivery and services,
Total income 44 158.57 A6 284 64 32,111.89 Authorised share capital {2 Cr) 12.50 1280 12 80 theraby giving lower prionty to the automobiles industry. This limits our ability to 82l our products in
Expanses averseas markals,
Cost of materials consumed * 26,802.06 |24.59350 | 2098719 Paid-up Equily (8 Cr) 5.05 9.05 5.05 4 e
Changes in mventones of finished goods, work-in-process Resarves & Surplus ($Cr) B.49 554 By ‘ i .
and Stock-in-Trade +79.22 -323.37 -140.93 Revanue from Operations (€Cr) 164,23 103.59 43.04 The Company's business and pafformance ara influenced by global and locsl ‘econamic
Employes benefit expenses 3,580,858 9 207 72 2 800,25 - conditions. In |I]dla. sales of two and thm&_whwlar& are- directly ‘related L] GOP growth.
Firance costs 2.093.25 1.916.60 1.367.89 ProfitAfter Tax {2 Cr) (2.11) 0.32 0.63 Asignificant porfion of the Company's revenue is generated by export and domesiic sales of two-
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1 04556 956 15 B58.86 EPS 1) {2.33) 0.70 0.70 whealars and threa-wheelers. A further slowdown i economic growth could axerl dowmward
Other expenses 7.135.57 5,732,865 4.170.10 MNet Assat Value per Equily Shara () 1747 19,48 15.03 pressure on the demand for these products. In addition, the Company's performance is
Tolal expenses 4057910 | 3617355 | 30.,133.36 significantly influenced by the economic situation and governmental policies in India, Furthermors,
Profit before exceptional items and tax 3,579.47 2.711.09 1,978.63 Sundaram - Clayton Limited was incorporated on 297 August, 2017, a2 TVS Commodity Financial a prolonged weaknesz in the Indian and global financial and economiz situation may have a
Excaplional items - income | {expensa) * 5183 817 A2 ED Solulions Private Limited under the Companies Act, 2013, Pursuant {o the approval of the negative impact on third paries with whom the Company does, or may do, business. The primary
Profit before tax 3,527.84 2,702.92 1,936.03 shareholders by way ofa 5penja.| resalution Pﬂg.ﬁ,:ed ond” FE"bi'l-l-El!'}'. 2022, the 'E'DI'I'IFIF.II'I'FWHE remamed consumer base of the Company includes salared employeas and agricultural workers. FPoor
income tax expense Sundaram-Clayton DCD Private Limited, and a fresh cerificate of incorporation was issued on 87 monscon and non-availability of labour for agricultural sector may impact the demand of these
Currant tax | 1. 182 80 1.012.83 703 .48 Fabruary, 2022, Subsequently, the Company was convered into a public limiled company and products. Any of these factors could adversely aflect the Company's business, financial
Deferred tax charge/{credit) @ A4 7T -B8.25 76,89 renamed Sundaram-Clayton DCD Limiled, faliowing shareholder approval dated 10" February, 2022 conditions, cash flows and resulls of operations.
Profit for the 2,379.81 1.778.54 1.309.46 with a revised cerificate issued on 24" February, 2022. Thereafter, under a Composite Schame of Any unpradictable monsoon behaviour, unexpecled change In crude oil prices or impact in the
Other comprehensive Income Arrangement approved by the Hon'hia NCLT, Channai Bench, on 6 March, 2023, the manufacturing policy rate culs may lead to increased inflation. There can be no assurance that the Company will
ttems that will nof be reclassified o profit and loss business of TVE Holdings Limiled was demerged, transfarrad, and vestad inlo the Company with be able o pass on any additional expensas or that the Company's revenue will increase
Remeasurement of post amploymant benefit obligations -4.35 -28.42 -27.62 affect from 117 August, 2023 (“Demarger’), and the Company was simultansously renamad proportionately corresponding to such nflation. Accordingly. high rates of inflation In India could
Change in fair value-of equity instruments 5 23.27 0.33 -13:562 Sundaram-Clayton Limited, with a fresh cerificate dated 207 August, 2023, bearng CIN: have an adverse effect on the Company's profitability. Any adverse impact on Macroeconomios
Income lax relating tothese tems -1.78 3.83 10.38 L5S1100TNZ01 TPLC 118316, The Company had not commenced operations prioe to the Demerger: causad by inflation, nmational or govemnmental instability, impact on agncullural production,
ftemns that will be reclassified to profit and loss post-Demerger, it is engaged in the manufacture of aute components, The detailad financial reports negative of lawer economic grawth in the Indian and giobal economy could impact the Company's
Transactions relating to Dervalive instruments & ol 26 =35:55 B5.02 are available at hitps:fwww.sundaram-clayton.com/Reparts htm, and the Information derived from revenue stream, Additionally, occurrence of such events and a consequent liguidity crunch shatl
Iérn;'ma tax ralaI:ing 1l-:;| H:Eﬁﬁ narn:“ " -~ ;2; g Sgﬁ ;gg the audited financial statements far the last three years is given below! alsx impact retall buyers and the ratail finance markeat.

ther comprehensive income @ year, of tax : -53, : : e
Total comprehensive income for the year # 242703 | 172507 | 1.368.74 o T F"’"‘“’ FY2024 [ FY2023 9. ReguistoryRisks: o | - |
Earnings per share uthorised share capital {2 Cr) 5.00 15.00 0.0025 The Company's operations entail EI'!-'I.l'IFﬂFII'I"bE-‘I'IlEIl risks. The Company is subsecl o axiensive
Basic & Diluted eamings per share 4705 15 50 a7 g7 Paid-up Equity (TCr) 11,02 10,12 00025 mgulla:!uns |n::|u+:lmg_mg||Jran'!dlﬂns mlat_lng b worker h;am;jmﬂ sa;a-rl‘y and EI:‘I'.‘I!EHI'HEII:LI?F Iglw; Tl:d

n regulations concerning land use, air emissions, discharge of hezardous materials in &
InEwged e sdag OF Shok i Irede _ _ Rymtrves 5 Surpluy ifﬂr} L4l re i ot aﬁ-lmnmam. wasta I-hrEauslrie'nls and abandonmant of Inslaﬁhnns or otharwise relaling to the
" Includes Share of net profit / (loss) from associates using equity method and Profit before tax from Revenue from Operations (¢Cr) 2,109.14 1,341.52 (0.014) protection of the environment in connection with Its operations. Numerous govemment agencles
Discontinued operations Profit After Tax (¥ Cr) 267892 64,52 (0.0012) and departments issue rules, ordinances and regulations, which are often difficult and costly to

H Includes Share of other comprehansive income of an associate EPS (f) 122.23 34.80 (0.00) comply with and which carry substantial penaltes for non-compliance. In the ordinary course of
: business, the Company is subject o environmental inspections and monitorin owemment

SClnsion S NetAsset Value per Equity Share (f) 64596 394 23 144.48) enforcament ElLrﬂ'lurF:ltiE-g The gjumpany may inclr EUEEIEE.'I?IaI costs, including ngst.ﬁlljfmage-a and

# Includes NCI portion
Vincludes Current tax from Disconlinued operations
& Incluedes lax from Discontinued operations

|. Latest restatad audited financials along with notes to accounts and any audit qualifications.

criminal or civil sanctions; or exparence interruptions or suspensions in the Company’s operations
for actual or alleged violations arising under applicable environmental and other laws and
requlations. Fulure government policies and changesin the laws and regulations in India including
but not imited to changes in regulatony framawork by any requiator, inter aiia the KBI or IRDAI or

Emerald Haven Development Limited was incorporated on 8% July 2008 as a Public Limited
Company under the Companles Act, 1956, at Rol Zhennal, bearing CIN =
UA5200TH2008PLEREES11. The Company is engaged in business of real esiate development. The
iancial Information darlvad from last thraa vaars andited fnandal statemants of the Compary 18

koo R sieralbide skl guiidedioo il el i g
m. Change In accounting policles In the last three years and their effect on profits and reserves Particulars FY 2025 FY2024 | FY2023 | mal:f'rﬁu:::;l:inn; inc?ud':n 5 ir?creaaé in mﬁl of inﬁuranse i B pg_:e Gers sl |;J'en’rra|
ing podici | ' ital (% Cr) B0,00 60.00 50,00 : g 3 ) e sty
There has been no change in accounting policies by the Company in last three years, Authorised share capita govarnment Any change inlaw, regulation, rulss, comment. statements, or policy framewark ks not
n. Summary tabla of contingent liabilities: Faid-up Equity (T Cr) a8 ar.1e Br.18 within the controd of the Company and such change in laws and regulations may adversely impact
The details of contingent liabilities are a5 follows: Reserves & Surplus (FCr) 8,53 14.88 12.18 the obligations and oparations of the Company.
(% In Crore} Revenue from Cperations (R Cr) 1.69 149 249 16495 h. Product Lishility Risks:
Details March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 Profit After Tax {2 Cr) (6.35) 2.70 (25.10) The Company is subject to risks and costs associated with product liability, warranties and recalls
{a) Claims against the company not EPS (%) (1.11) 0.47 (4.38) in cannection with performance, campliance or safaty related issues affecting company's vehicles
aoknowledged as debis®; T‘-Tétﬁ.sse!‘u-’aiwp&rEquﬂthara ) T 1360 513 ] F:nﬂr;r_‘: lmt';e t-:mfelltmun?e Enmp-ar;_ may EI‘?&NE& (] -nvesligahqalns hi_g,;_lguvarnm&m:: al.rth-::r_i:::as
: : : relating to safety and other compliance e Company’s vehicles. The Company also provides
(i) Excize 23 90 23 89 B2.44 r th h npe
: ; Vieyas Charities Faundation was Incorptrated on 20° AbgusL 2021 a8 & Private Limited Gompany a warranty lo tha ultimate consumer with sach product sold and acerues warranty expenses al the
lity Servica tax L7 B.08 B.65 {Mot for Profit Limited by Guarantes) under the Companies Act 2013 at RoG - Chennal, bearing GiN - time of sale based on actual clalms history. The Company E_"F"F“d considerable resources in
(iii) Customs - - 39 67 UB0A0ATN202 1NPL145610. The Company is engaged in providing financial assistance and refief 1o SPOROCRRN WA pRotuct ecle, A oo fesotioan MK e (e eos) G PRI ek
(v} Sales tax = 700 574 the needy and poar. irrespective of caste, community, or creed, thraugh donations, stipends, interest- mpaa;a:&d O L R e B TR Al IO L oo N LB, W Spcibch. prasHct
I I 105 ¥, free loans, and other support for education. health, and livelihood; to establish and maintaln Peallcy o o S ComgRlITy: 3 GORIsuBera: I GUeOnN thie safoly o rekabmity. of canparty’s yahicids
(v] Income tax : . : educational institutions, promota learning and research by inslituling prizes and scholarships. The and harm company s reputation.
{wi} GET 55.03 1628 346 financial information derived from last three years aidited financial statemaents of the Company s i. Risksrelaled folaunch of new products by the Company:
{viiy Legal cases filed by cuslomers - - 4.04 _given below: The ability of the Company to sirengthen its position within its iraditional product snd market
(vill) Legal cases filed by borrowers Particulars FY 2025 FY¥2024 | FY2023 segments through development of innovative products and services while expanding into
against the Company 1315 .15 i Authorised share capital (T Cr)* - - - additional market segments, i5 crucial to its future success. A general shift in consumer
) B : - Paid-up Equity (T Cr)* = = — preference lowards differant types of vehicles, which could result from, among other things,
(n) Eéﬁr.;m?ug;hm the company is Reserves & Surplus /Genaral Fundit on T 67 T govarnment reguiations, envirohmental concerns and. increasing fuel pricas. could have a
. R I : - T bl negaltive effect on the Company's profitability generally, Inability to coptinue to improve the
{1} On bills discounted with banks 330,98 250,99 146,91 Revenue from Operabons | Donations, received (E0r) 14,73 10,432 -1 guality of s products, delays in bringing new vehicles to markeal, inability to achieve defined
- - ) _ _ Prafit After Tax SurplusiDeficit) (T Cr 775 7.0 %93 efficlency targets while suffering from quality losses and lack of markeét acceptance of new
e E;Ij o !:l:tﬂr:g MRngeants EFS (7) i ! 1 } l: :I models waould adversely affect the financial condition, results of operations and ¢ash flows of
R e b R : - . ’ the Company. The Company may al=o face potential ime and or cost overruns in davelopment
(i} Estimated amount of contracts | NetAssel Value per Equity Share () 3 B - of new products and associated research schemes. Further, despite maintaining and
remaining o be executed on capital . T : daveloping strategies for limely launches of new products, the Company may be unable to
acoourt and not provided for 343,18 252419 28143 NoAppIsEkiR, 28 1B LR MR IRIMERE DY QUARIEE U b a o0ty INAmBEEs! launch novel, high-quality and cost-effective products in & limely fazhion before it competitors
(i} On Investments ¥ 1 88 3.80 TVS Organics Private Limited was incorporated on 277 June 2013 as & Private Limited Company inthe market
; ' under tha Companias Act 1956, at RoC — Chennal, bearing CIN - U154892TN20M3PTCO91874, The o | Risks:
1y Undrawn loans sanctioned ta i ; i ; ietri i J. Fimancial Risks
(f : 2 Company i3 engaged Inv business of processing, farming, manufacturing, distnbutorship, agency, . 2y : ; :
customers by financial enterprises 41.249 G347 43,58 broker, factors, stockisst, importer and otherwise deal in &l kinds of organic and inorganic foods The Company and certain of its subsidianes require significant capital expenditure in order
(v} Estimated Indemnity amaunt an products and drinking products, mineral water, solt drinks, aerated mineral water, frult drinks, antificial to implemant their strategy. The Lompany must continia 1o Invast zapitel o maintain the
account of tax paid due to flavoured drinks, condensed milk and drinking products of all kinds and ather consumable provision of m.-anufa_tlurlng and pmr_'lu::thn of two and 1hrgaawhauiﬁ~r ﬂmducts._‘rhu Gnm_pan'_-.-' s capital
interpretational difference in GST avary deseription for human consumplion. The financial imformation derved fram last three years expenditure plans and requiremants are subject fo & number of risks, cantingencies and
ety £ _— 1594 . audited financial statements of the Company is given below: athar factors, some of which are beyvond its control. In addition, the Company cannot assure
- : ' PR TS FY 2025 FY 2024 FY 2023 investors that it will be able to generate sufficient cash flow or that it will have access o
{d) Dther commitments, ; -fticlrare sufficient external financing to support its current and planned business operations,
On impart of capital goods under Expor Authorised share capital (t Cr) 001 0.01 0.01 including its existing and future working capital requiramants. The Company may find it
Promplon Canilal Goods Schame = = = Paid-up Equity (¥ Cr} 0 @.01 00 difficult o procurs adequate amount’ of funds at an appropriate price and enurg due o
p
Resarves & Sumlus (#0F 031 027 0,24 unavailability or liquidity issues in the financial markets. Changes in econamic and financial
= Ll a_“'” uds.0u : S = o E}pu : i{i ) ¥ 203 Y 377 conditions or continuing lack of iquidity in the market could make it difficult for the Campany
The fulure cash fiows on the above ilems are detaminable only on recelpt of the decislons/ judgments evenug from Operations | : ta access funds et competitive rates, Any such disruption in the Company’s ability tc access
that are pending at vanous forumsiauthonbes, The future cash flaws on the above items are ProfitAfter Tax (2 Cr) 005 0.2 .07 primary funding seurces at competitive costs would have a signilicant adverse effect on ils
rﬂelmr::natruigﬂ only on receipt of the decisionsiudgments thal are panding al vanous EPS ) 4580 2130 7140 liquidity, financial condition andlor cash flows.
DL Lo, MetAsset Value par Equity Shana (# a0 280 IEO The Company borrows funds from various banks and financial instilutions t© meet the fong-

o, Summary table of related party transactions in last 3 years as disclosed in the resfated
financial statements:
For detalls of the related party ransactions for the [ast thres firancial Years ended March 31, 2025,
March 31, 2024 and March 31,2023 in accordance with the requiremenis under Ind AS.24 "Related
Party Disclosures™ notified under Saction 133 of the Companies Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Slandards) Rules 2015, as amended from time 1o me, see seclion litted "Financial
Information” of the Information Memorandum issued by the Company. Further refer to Information
Memorandum: (i) page F41 —Noba 35; (i} page Fr9 —Noted1; (i} page F111- Mate 34 (iv) paga F148
= Mole-39; (vipage F181 = Note 34, (vi) page F220 - Note 39 for relafed party fransactions: {i} for the
period ended March 31, 2025 on standalone basis; (il) for the period ended March 31, 2025 on

term and short-term funding requirements for its gparations and funding its growth initiatives,
bath in Rupee and Forelgn currency. Upward Nuctiuations in interest rales may increass the cosl
ofany floating rate debt that the Company incurs, In addition, the interest rate that the Company
will be able lo sacure in any fulure debt financing will depend on market conditions at that tims
and. may differ from the rates on #ts existing debt, If the Interest rates are high when the
Company needs to accass the markets for additional debt financing, the Company's resulis of
aperalions, planned capital expenditures and cash flows may be adversely affacted. Simitarly,
movermnent In exchange rates and intemational tending rates could have impact on the
Company's findancials

e
TVS Cheema Scholarship Foundation was incomporated on 12" December 2023 25 a Privale
Limited Company (Seclion B} under the Companles Acl, 2013, at RoC - Chennal, bearing CIN -
Lgag00TNZOZINFL1G5888, The Company is engaged in business of ‘providing educational
assistanca lo tha naady and desarving candidatas for pursuing higher aducation in the form of grant.
pay or schalarship, stipends, allowances either in cash or in kind, interest-free loans and other forms
of assistance and also to develop, establish, promote and facififate the improvement of educational,
social, cullural, economic and medical rellef and advancement of any others charitable and
developmental ohiects of general public utility and community. The financial information derved from
last thrae years audited financial stalemeants of the Company is given below:

consolidated basis, (§l) for the period ended March 31, 2024 on standalone basis; (v} for the perlod Particalare FY 2025 | FY 2024 | FY 2023° k: Risks roiated foporformance of our Subsidianesand Associates.. _

ended March 31, 2024 on consolidated basis; (v) for the period ended March 31, 2023 on standalone Authiorised share capitas (¢ el .01 9.01 3 Dﬁlﬂn_m&hun in the performance of any of _Tha Company's snllhsldaanes or associgtes could

basis; (vi} for the perlod ended March 31, 2023 on consolidated basis. respectively. The Information . - : : matedally and adversaly affect the Company’s resulls of aperations. The Company have made

Mexmoranduny s upleaded 1o the website ofthe Company at www lvsmetar.com Paid-up Equity (T Cr) 0:m 001 = and may continue 1o make capltal commitments to its subsidiaries, and assodiates , and If the
p. Details of its other group companies including thelr capital structure and financial statements: Resarves & Surplusy Ganeral Fund {1 Cr) 3887 | (0.001) - business or wperations of any of these subsidiaries and associates ﬁieltleﬁnratesl_. |.-|'I-'EII value of the

In-terms of SEBI (lssue And Listing of Mon-Convertible Securiies) Regulations, 2021 ("NCS Revanuwes from Operations | Donations, Grants, Conbribubions (1 Cr) 40.00 - - ﬁﬂmFH“‘# = ATV ASITI YIS Ay decline *..:ubstanha.]!y'. AS "'."""':.atm n "'."5 Rigk Fmt{"{f saction, our

Regulations™) the term “group companies” Includes (1) such companies, other than promaoter(s), Profit After Tax{ Surplus/{Deficil) (2 Cr) 38.67 | (0.001) - subsidiaries f‘“d_f'ﬂﬂ'ﬂf’:'ﬂt&ﬁ_ are also subject to inter alia nisks relating to COVID-19, macro and

subsidiary/subsidiaries, with which there wera related party transactions, during the period for which Ficro econpmic risks, financel and regulatory risks.

financial information is disclozed in the offer documants, as covered under the applicable accaunting EPS{Y) = 3 3 I. Personne! Bigks:

standards and (il) other companies as considerad material by the board of the seer. Accordingly, all Mat Asset Value per Equily Share (?) = = - The Company’s ability to operate is business and implement its strategies depends, in part, an the

such companies which our Company had relaled party transactions as per the last three years audited
financial statements have been consikderad group companias in tarms of NCS Regulations.

Based on the above foliowing iz the summary of capital structure-and financals of the dertified group
companies: o

continued contributions of the Company's execulive officers and ather kay emplayess, The loss af
any of the Compamy's key senior executives could have an adverse effect on the Company's
business unless and until & replacement is found. In addition, the Company balieves that its futurs
success will depend on its continued abilily to attract and retain highly skilled personnel with

*Since the Company is incorporated only on 127 December 2023 thers are no comesponding figures
for FY 2023,

Internal Risk Factors : Risks Relating to the Company's Business

the manufacturing of Company's products. The Company (s axposed fo reliance on smalier

Ultraviolette Automotive Private Limited was incomorated on 18° December 2015 as & privale . Fisks mefating lo the Gnnmaw s Market-share: . experience in the key business areas of the Company, Competition for these persons is intenss,
lmied company under the Companies Acl 2013 al RoC - Bangalore, bearing CIN - The damestic and |nlernatonal automobive market s highly compelitive. The Company faces and the Company may nal be able to successiully recruit, frain ar relain qualified managarial
L34 102KA2015P TCOB4804, The company was bom out of the unique vision of creating top-of-the competition from automotive manufaciurers in the market in which it operates and in future could personne.
line - mobility solutions, that's driven by progressive dasign. and energy efficient technology. face competifion and chaflenges from ouiside of automotive industry as well Furiher, the . Natural Dissstar ik
Uttravialette Automative is developing India's first ecosystem of high-performance electric vehicles continuous deragulation and iiberalisation of the industries in India could lead 1o increased : : L. " .
and future-ready energy infrastructure, The financial information derived from last three vears audited compefition from domestic and intemational aulomobite manufaciurers in the Company's Th_H: Company's operations depend upen its ability 1o protect its principal pljm:lu:!lnn facititios
financial statermants af the Company Is glven balow, domastic markel, which may have a matedal adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial against damage from fire, earthquakes, floods, storms, power loss and similar events and 1o
Paricalars a FY 2025 Fy2o24 | Fraozs condifion and results of operations. White the company has a monopaly in the mopeds category in construct faciiies that are not vuinerabie to the effects of such events, The ocourrance of a natural
) .'m"“ India, there has not been a significant increase in demand and sales in this category, Further, disastar or othas gnanlqppat_ad_pmblums at its Tan;:_ll_!uas ar work sites could cause iInleruptions in
| Authorized share capital (2 Cr) B1.48 80.60 T1.83 Secaoters. commuter motoreycles and other products of the Company could face inlense the normial operation of its principal production facilities.
Paid-up Equity (8 Cr) 77.26 76.80 71.08 agmprﬁﬂﬁm wi;h E?ﬂime nn;;:ima m;-_ﬂleglilagh a;:lim:ﬂt_ed t:g mr:dﬂlﬁtﬂﬂdmpled ":i:h[ hli_?her n. Mational Securlty and Civil Disturbance Risks:
adverlizing and marketing spend — making allanging 1o maintain and grow market shara. . . . L
Recservas & Surplus (¥ Cr) 289,75 27005 334.34 Multiple new compsanies zre entering into Bleciic two-wheelers business. These new entrants India nas, fresm Yemie Lo un:m. axperanced soclal and civil unnest within the courntry and hostibitios
Revenue from Operations (2 Cr| ] 5 08 B a7 may have pdverse impact on company's market-share and profitability, There can be no '_.'.-Ilh ﬂg_lgr'fl:-nurl_hg eounlras: _Trms& hostilities and lensons mulFl Inad_ tor politcal or aconomic
Profit After Tax (2 Cr) (116.01) (61.88) (7.40) assurance thal the Caompany will be able o implement Its future strategies In a way that will instability in India and a possible adverse affect on the Company's businass and fulura financial
B T RS MR L e M P T parformance. Acts of War and other acls of violence or war may adversely affect global markets
EPS®) (202) (107) (13} _!‘rg . . T P . £ and ecanomic growih. These acls may also result in & lass of businass confidence, make travel
2 Rizks relafing to disrupiion in our supply chain; b b diffcultand h ! tT-u sd i " .
NetAszel Value per Equity Share (1 637 802 703 ’ oo ! and other senices more difficull and have other adverse consequances,
pREANY ) The Company raties on third pariies for sourcing of raw materals, pans-and components used in

Continued on next page...
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o, CyberRisk: r. Quistanding litigations and defaults of the transferee entity, promoters, directors or any of the
Y | BSE
The Company is Increasingly reliant on digital technologies and interconnected systems for its SFoup compan ks, . 3 |  Pariod High (in?) | Low {in%) Average Price (in?)
oparations, Including manufaclueng. supply chain management, cuslomer angagemant, and There |s no ransferee entity. pursuant lo the Scheme. The detalls of the outstanding litigations and F | -
financial transactions. This depandence exposes the Company to cyber threats s e defaulls of the Company, Promolers, Directors ar any of the group companias, are available in the F¥ 2025 £,858.13 1.873.05 243185
: - b RS MR S o o s P : Information Memorandum in the section titled ‘Outstanding Litigations', The |nformation FY 2024 231390 | 107500 1,614 87
breaches, ransomware attacks, phishing, and ather forms of cyber infrusion. A successiul cyber g g
s e 2 5 1 bbb Wi ol : gl 2 ; T Me dum isuploadadc shsiteofthe & vy at wnwr bvsmator.com,
attack could lead to unauthorized access to sensitive business information, disruption of puilebaltatilnbiintcasa i bl ks il b R FY2023 1,777.00 =89.10 244,39
oparalions, repulational damage, and hnancal oss Addiionally, as regulatory ramaworks 5. Regulatory Action, if any - disciplinary action taken by SEBI or Stock Exchanges against the v. Anv material development after the data of the balance sheet:
i : . ¥ "
around data protaction and cyber securty evolve, non-compliance could resull in penalties and Promoters in last 5financial years; Btk than sg disclosed steawhora in tha Infsrmation Mamorandum:of the auditad financial
legal liabilities. While the Company has implemented cyber security measures and confinues to MIL 51.'-|h:=.-rn-ant5 5.!n-::|=.- -;"'.P:'il LR .F!I}f-?ﬁ ’rilll the ;!:..:.!H! of filin-r: this Hn:errilﬁemﬂnt. rh.ere have hee;'l fnn
imvestin strengthening its digital infrastructure, these measures may not be sufficient to prevent all 7 5 . T 5 . event! development or change having implicaﬁ-:uns‘ﬂn the financials/credit quality (e.g9., any
cyber incldents, The Increasing sophistication of cyber lhreals poses a parsistent risk lo the t. Briefdetails of outstanding criminal proceedings against the Promoters: material. regulatory proceadings against the Company! Promoter! Directors, litigatlons
Campany s businass conbinuily and stakeholder trust il resulting in material llabilites, corporate restrucluring eveanl etc.) which may affect the [ssue
i y ) i : 1 | i L E 0 15
p. Unaudited Financial Resulls u, Particulars of high, low and average prices of the shares of the listed transferor entity during ::-;.ilﬂa':;::‘ﬁiIf::jf;rjqistlpu;frruﬁ;ﬂ;;l;:ea rtll:-: ;I::H:LII TJ:_:SE?FJ:E IR LN NETIRENNRUM.S
. the preceding three years: e X e L R £ e g bl
The Infarmation Memorandum includes unauvdited standalone and consolidated financial . :
results for the ning months ended December 31, 2025, As the unaudited financial resulis The Part Il of the Scheme deals with issue of Preference Shares by way of bonus. Therefore, there is W, Such oiliee krformation s may M_SFEEIHEd MY e B friom thma b Hmee:
prepared by the Company have been subject only to a limited review and as described in na listed transfaror entily invelved, Nevertheless, below are the datails of high, low and average prices For further details on issue of NCRPS by the Company pursuant o the Schema, please refor lo
{ - i =L © af EQIITY shares of the Company in praceding three years: Infarmation Memarandum available on tha wabisita of he Company al waww lvsmotar coim.

Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410, "Review of Interim Financial Information

Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entily” issuad by the |CAL Any reliance by the Caplalezed tarms nat defined heraln shall hava the meanng as prescribed in the Information

investors on such imited review financial information for the nine months ended Decamber 31, MNSE Memarandum.
2025, should, accordingly, be limited. Any financial results published in the future may not be Pariod High {in7) Low {in ) Average Price {in?)
consistent with past performance, Accordingly, the investors should rely on thelr independent _ - : ERTTT = For and on behalf of TVS Maotor Company Limited
examinabion of our linancial position and results of operations, and should nol place undue FY 2023 2.958.00 1.873.00 2.432.01 pary Sel/-
Ir:ri:::r::;;:;.;:ﬁla;ﬁe::teifin'-.rE:atn'lEnI-::IE:i:-'.inr. solely on the financial information includad in this Fy 2024 2.313.45 1 [:-?3_[][_:— 1.614 87 Date : 13.02.2076 K S Srinivasan
e P Ol FY 2023 1.176.90 589.05 944.24 Place ' Chennai Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
HindiaShelter sf3e 2lece Wisad Hulead fofdies srare sty o R
—Hame Loam uoft. Frafed : wic - 15, BoT a0, dace-44, FACTITG e, IE~aTa, sfeemom-122002 & fos ot graem — - - . - STETE - 25T
facia ekl &1 uffaesor JiR gAfmier dor gfenyfar 20 gade oM, 2002 (S T “31feIfRM" o581 a7 &) & |1 ufed ufonfa ; ¢ - s Sl 7 ez el S w %
el () Fremmae, 2002 (g% oM “Framraeh” &€l T §) & PR 8(6) b ded arde MR B ) &g Ao R g _ e WWW@WZEW
UIGERT 94 AR BT 3R fI9y w6 A FHoleREl), Te—dholaRRl) qom TReXRT) 3fear S96 SIAl a1Rka /|t ufaffest &7 @ T-270, Wl SN £ el Fraoms, iR Tt
) N : < ~ p . . #HH; admin@alchemistarc. com, THATET: www.alchemistarc, com Il &, ¢ ool & wwa
& Il 7 6 A Aok wrgAw duReE fafice (9H M URNG oFMeR dEl 8 B) & U d9uds /gaIRa fafia s PP
Frafed /a1, RiFdT deoll YA oFGR, Uolidd ®Taferl UdT : 8ol dd, Wic Far 15, SXICI-d YRAT, Aae—44, THUTH—122003 _ A s o (Frm) fem, 2014 3 Frad 41 % ded
& WRrhd SN gRT foram S gar 2, 1 affd dolaRi, Ae—dboiaRi al TReXl & ghrT IR & agel & foy i aftfa (farfm wftwmfot & 3 e site e fiw R, 2002 #oaw 1) F T A % Wl
RN N o . . s : T g A e o # fr et Hrerer o Tt (gelm e/ o), 7 S0-00-2025 B =W SRS W TR e
fafey 1 "SR & S8l 2, Sl © Sl 87 e S W1 § 98l 87 SER WR 9l el | I8 el uiieied SR grRT e aftid e Ao e e & vl T e St 7 e fva &, ok TR Qurverial  ereond R, 2000 ¥ €T 15i2) B e P o
TR BT ST | e sy shfis(am) o ond fiv @ sl () o el & arpde v ovm @ R & o e (el o mit ol ardee 9 eo (e = CIN: U70109DL2019PLC350953, foraht st
' RO R AR/ KT 13Q) & ted A DT D AT AR TP Gl e [T @ (e B {9 o e i sroremen o Wity sl St o ool e o) Pt sl @ S o samn ofl st freeo o Pl o geiea FTAeRT Te-62/1, Ta-scite, SO HvT, Heie O,
@Wgﬁ'\’ Wg) Ain X 1 ffer ol e AR watl 27-11-2025 % 510,000/~ W°5—°3§>26 o SHUTETE far el e v o, el qRrerRT o wiRw sl o a2 (d) % men we o fed o s @ wd e 7 fewefi-110001 R feerw 2, 3 v &
BolgRERY) / TReXRY) &1 M 11—04—2025 o (Fréteror @1 W99 : 9@t 10.00 TR £ ¥ | I | S ICECD
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